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INDEPENDENTAUDITDHS’ REPORT

The Members of ESL Steel Limited (Formerly Electrosteel Steels Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Standalone financial statements of ESL Steel Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including other
Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other notes for the year ended on that date (hereinafter referred to as “financial state ments”).

Inourepinionandto the best of our information andaccording to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the *Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of

the Company as at March 31, 2025, and it’s loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion,

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note no. 44 ofthe financial Statement indicating that approval for Consent to Operate
(CTO) and Environmental Clearance (EC) is pending before Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate
Change (MoEF), financial constraints currently being faced Dy the company and the losses beingincurred
by it as stated in the said note. However, considering the direction of Hon'ble Supreme Court of India
allowing the continuation of the operation of the Company and financial and other Support provided by the
Holding Company and steps being taken by the company towards obtaining CTO, the financial statements
of the company due to the reasons stated in the said note have been prepared on going concern basis,
though the uncertainty on the Company’s ability to continue as such exists as on this date. Our opinion is
notmodified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of maost significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
Separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the Key Audit
Matters to be communicated in our report:
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Key Audit Matters

II Addressing the key audit matters

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) and
Intangible Assets (as described in note 4(a) and 5.4 of the financial statements)

Evaluation of the impairment involves
assessment of value in use of the Cash
Generating Units (CGUs) and requires
significant judgements and assumptions
about the forecast for cash flows, production,
volume of operations, selling prices of the
product and discount rate considered for
arriving at the present value of future cash
flows.

The above includes the evaluation of plant
and equipment pertaining to expansion
project undertaken in earlier years and it's
prospects for implementation in near future.

Impairment testing of PPE, CWIP and
Intangible assets were carried out during the
year ended March 31, 2018 and provision of
Rs. 5,11,193.01 lakhs were made. No further
provision or reversal thereof has been
considered necessary during this year.

The key judgements and estimates for
impairment relates to future cashflows,
present value assumptions, price and
production, forecasts requiring substantial

Our Audit procedures based on which we arrived at the
conclusion regarding reasonableness of Impairment
includes the following:

» Critical evaluation of internal and external factors
impacting the entity’s performance and indicators
of impairment (or reversal thereof) in line with Ind
AS 38;

e Analysing the management’'s review, contention
and representation regarding the project in
progress and adjustments needed against
carrying value of the assets. This includes,
reviewing the status of plant and equipment so far
procured currently under progress and being a
technical matter placing reliance on management
contention and technical advice in this respect;

s Reviewing the valuation report by independent
professional appointed by the company for
arriving at value in use, assumptions and
projections considered for such valuation for
broad consistency and necessary updation
thereof based on current indicators, prevailing
situation and this being a technical matter,
reliance has been placed on management’s
contention, representation and the valuation

amount of the subjectivity and sensitivity
having substantial impact on the financial i
statements. |

report by experts;

» Review of impairment covering the entire block of
tangible and intangible assets and capital work in
progress and valuation models used to determine
the recoverable amount by analysing the key
assumptions used by management in this respect
including:

- Consistency with respect to forecast for
arriving at the valuation and assessing the
potential impact of any variances,

- Price assumptions used in the models; and

- The assumption/estimation for the weighted
average cost of capital and rate of discount for
arriving at the value in use.

s Review of projections at current capacity and

volume of operations and projected outcome
! thereagainst and impact thereof on overall
impairment assessment;

e Placing reliance on the management’s
assumption for future prospects, expansion of
current capacity, expected volume of business
and sustainability of the cash flows; and
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Deferred Tax Assets to the extent of Rs. |
88,989.38 lakhs (including Rs. 6,677.43 lakhs |
for the year) on account of carried forward |
business losses including depreciation on
year-to-year basis following the principle of
conservatism has not been recognised.

The analysis of deferred tax assets has been
identified as Key Audit Matter because this
involves a  significant amount and
recognition/non-recognition based on the
judgement regarding future profitability and
utilisation of the unabsorbed losses and
depreciation based on assumptions and
projections pertaining to future period which
is inherently uncertain.

’T(ey Audit Matters i\ildressing the key audit matters
s Evaluated the disclosure made and decision
arrived at by the management with respect to the
requirement for impairment testing and
recognition/reversal thereof.
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets (as described in note 48 of the financial statements)
Deferred tax assets amounting to Rs. | Our Audit procedures based on which we arrived at the
2,28,400.55 lakhs basically attributable to | conclusion regarding reasonableness of recognition of
depreciation have been recognised in earlier | Deferred Tax includes the following:
year and carried forward in the financial
statements as at March 31, 2025. e Utilisation of Deferred tax assets have been tested
based on internal forecasts prepared by the

Company and probability of future taxable
income;

* We critically examined the temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of balances of
assets and liabilities as per Ind AS financial
statement and those considered for tax purposes;

e Reversal of deferred tax liability due to timing
differences and possible adjustments of deferred
tax assets there against;

e Critical review of the future projections and
underlying assumptions for broad consistency
following the principle of prudence for arriving at
reasonable degree of probability on assertions
thereof considering the past trends;

* Review of management's assumption with
respect to earning in future periods and taxability
thereof and placing reliance on such assumptions
and projections given the current and future scale
of operations and prevailing and expected
conditions and situations; and

* [Evaluated the disclosure made by the
management and adequacy thereof as required in
this respect.

Evaluation of Accounting of Iron Ore Mines (as described in note 4(f) of the financial statements)

Recognition of Mining rights and Assets,
stripping activity assets and generation
thereagainst, production profile, stripping
ratio, and proved/ probable reserves, |
categorization of Mines as exploratory,
development, producing, liability for
decommissioning costs are based on
Technical/ commercial evaluation by the
management.

Our Audit procedures based on which we arrived at the
conclusion regarding reasonableness of disclosure
includes the following:

e Review of the Production Profile and related
overburden as submitted by the management to
the authorities and raising as obtained out of the
mining operation;
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Key Audit Matters

Ad&?essing the key audit matters

Examined the valuation process, methodology
and checks being performed for arriving at the
cost of lron Ore produce and related levies and
premium to ensure that the valuation of inventory
are as per the policy prescribed in this respect;

Evaluated the approach adopted by the
managementin determiningthe expected costs of
decommissioning including appropriateness of
discount and inflation rates for estimating such
cost and determining the expected outflow and
placing reliance on the independent technical
consultant in this respect;

Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures
made in the financial statements; and

Reliance has been placed on the report of
independent technical consultant for
proved/probable reserves in the mines and
judgments and estimation of the internal/ external
experts for the purpose of technical /commercial
evaluation and also submission made to
authorities in this respect.

Non-Renewal of Consent to Operate from JPSCB (as described in note 44 of the financial

statements)

The Company’s application for renewal of
Consent to Operate (‘CTQO’) was denied by
Jharkhand State Pollution Control Board
(*JSPCB’). Further Environmental Clearance
has also not been granted by Ministry of
Environment and Forest (MoEF).

MoEF vide its letter dated February 02, 2022
had deferred the grant of EC till Forest
Clearance (FC) Stage-ll is granted to the
company. In the meantime, MoEF vide its
letter dated June 05, 2023 had also revoked
the stage | Forest clearance granted earlier
and thereby representations have been made
by the company as well as by the State
Government for reconsideration of revocation
as substantial progress has been made in
identification and procurement of land to be
handed over for FC.

Pending decision of MoEF on the mater,
Hon’ble Supreme Court has directed that
operation of steel plant shall not be interfered
with on the ground of want of EC, FC, CTE or
CTO.

Our Audit procedures based on which we arrived at the
conclusion
Concern” include the following:

regarding reasonableness of “Going

Obtained the status of the case from the legal
department and their views on the matter;

Evaluated the steps being taken by management
for ensuring the related compliances including
those relating to procurement of land for
compensatory afforestation and/or other costs
thereof to be provided by the company and plans
for future course of actions for obtaining
Clearances as required for obtaining the
environment clearance from MoEF;

Reviewed the appropriateness of provision for
cost of land made for afforestation and other
costs to be incurred based on the report received
from ElA consultant after considering the various
concerns raised during the public hearing on the
matter and disclosures made in this respect by
the management;
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Key Audit Matters

Addressing the key audit matters

Pending completion of the entire process and
determination of cost to be incurred, Rs.
28,503.38 lakhs (including Rs. 12,731.60
lakhs provided during the year) (net of Rs.
30,668.59 lakhs paid) towards cost of land
and Rs. 20,556.58 lakhs towards other related
costs etc. (net of Rs. 1,473.99 lakhs paid) has
been provided on estimated basis and have
been carried forward in the accounts as on
March 31, 2025.

The amount of provision being significant and |
grant of CTO being critical to the operations of
the company have been considered to be Key
Audit Matter for the purpose of reporting.

Reliance has been placed on the estimate and
consultant report for cost of land and other costs
to be incurred for compensatory afforestation
against forest land; and

Further, reliance has also been placed on the legal
expert’'s view vis-a-vis direction of Hon’ble
Supreme court of India concerning the operation
of the plant and recommendations and report
submitted in this respect pending final decision on
the matter.

Claims in respect of MDPA (as described in note 40(B) of the financial statements)

As at March 31, 2025, the Company has
disputed the demand raised in respect of

shortfall in terms of Mine Development and
Production Agreements (MDPA) entered into !
with respect to the Iron Ore Block obligating
certain minimum production and despatch of
Iron Ore for each year of the operations.

Significant management judgement
supported by legal clarification on the matter .
is required to assess such matters to
determine the probability of occurrence of
outflow of resources and materiality of the
amountinvolved.

Our Audit procedures based on which we arrived at the
conclusion regarding reasonableness of “Claims in
respect of MDPA™ and disclosure made in this respect
include the following:

Understood, assessed and tested the design and
operating effectiveness of key controls
surrounding assessment of litigations relating to
the relevant laws and regulations;

Inquired with the management for recent
developments and the status of the same as
reviewed and noted by the Audit Committee;

Performed our assessment on a test basis on the
underlying calculations supporting the said claim
and possible implications thereof;

Evaluated management’'s assessments Dby
understanding precedents set in similar cases
and assessed the reliability of the management’s
estimates/judgements;

Examined external legal opinions and other
evidence to  corroborate management’s
assessment of the possibility of the liahility
against the demand raised in terms of MDPA,;

Reliance has been placed on such legal
interpretation and opinion provided on the matter;
and

Evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures made
in the financial statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report but does notinclude the financial statements and

our auditors’ report thereon. The other information as stated above is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this Auditors’ Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not exprass any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of the Management and those charged with governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs (financial position), Loss (financial performance including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles

generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management githerintendsto liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 10
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;
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» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial

controls system with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls;

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our apinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Co mpany to cease to continue as a going
concern; and

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Further to our comments in the annexure referred to in the paragraph above, as required by Section
143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) Inouropinion, proper books of account as reguired by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Camprehensive Income),
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;
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f)

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken
onrecord by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; and

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal control with reference to financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note no. 40 to the financial statements;

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts -
Refer Note no. 46(d) to the financial statements;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on the audit procedures and generally accepted auditing practices followed in terms of
SAs that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i)
and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material migstatement; and

The company has not declared any dividend during the year thereby reporting under Section
143(11)(f) is not applicable for the company.
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i, Based on the verification carried out by an Independent professional appointed for the purpose
and our examination of the data and details provided to us, which included test checks and
samples obtained by us in this respect and being atechnical matter placing reliance on the report
submitted by them, we report that the Company has used accounting software for maintaining
its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same was operational throughout the year. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with and the said audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

With respect to the reporting under section 187(16) of the Act to be included in the Auditors’ Report, In
our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid to
the Whole time Director and sitting fees paid to other Directors are in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act and are not in excess of the limit laid down therein. However, as stated in Note
no. 35.4 regarding commission to be paid to Directors as approved by the Board of Directors is subject
to shareholder’s approval in the ensuring Annual General Meeting.

For Lodha & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's ICAI Registration No.: 301051E/ E300284

Place: Kolkata
Date: April 22, 2025

Ashim Kumar Ghosh

Partner

Membership No: 054565
UDIN: 25054565BMOPSB2889
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE:
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of ESL Steel Limited of even date)
i) a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situations of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets except for
Insurable Spares capitalized with main assets, Pipe Moulds, Furniture, Fixture and Office
Equipment’s.

b. The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of Property, Plant and
Equipmentin a phased manner over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to this program,
a comprehensive and detailed verification of Property, plant and Equipment and Capital Work
in Progress has been carried out during the year by engaging the services of an Independent
firm of professional. The discrepancies noted on such verification were not material and have
been properly dealt with in the books of account.

¢. According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and
based on the title documents, records, confirmation from Security Trustees provided to us, we
report that, the title deeds, comprising of all the immovable properties of land and building are
held in the name of the Company as on the balance sheet date except certain land for which
lease deeds are yet to be executed as detailed below: (Refer Note no. 5.3 of the financial

statements).
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars | Area Gross Block
Land- Pending execution of Lease Deed 325.19 acres 11,568.24
Land- Pending compliance of compensatory 455.35 acres 65,873.66
afforestation*

*Amount includes estimated cost for land towards compensatory afforestation capitalized as
Right of Use (ROU) Assets, pending clearance from MoEF.

As stated in Note no. 5.5, the title deed with respect to above land are to be regularised after
obtaining necessary approvals of the authorities and charge holders.

d. The company is not following revaluation model of accounting and accordingly has not
revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) and
Intangible Assets during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3 (i)(d) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

e. Asperthe information and explanation given to us and as represented by the management, no
proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, further reporting
under Clause 3 (i){e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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ii) a. Asinformed, the inventories of the Company except for materials in transit and stock lying with
third parties at year end have been physically verified by the independent firm of professionals
along with the management during the year. In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the frequency of such verification is reasonable, and procedure
followed for such verification is appropriate. As the Company’s inventory of raw materials
comprises mostly of bulk materials such as coal, coke, iron ore, etc. requiring technical
expertise for quantification, the Company has hired an independent agency for the physical
verification of the stock of these materials. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification
between the physical stock and book stock of inventories to the extent verified during the year,
were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory and the same have been properly

dealt with in the books of account.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us the company has been sanctioned
working capital limit in excess of Rupees Five Crores on the basis of securities of Current
Assets of the company. On the basis of examination of returns/statements submitted as
provided to us for the purpose, these were in agreement with the books and records and the
financial statements prepared therefrom by the management.

i) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the documents
examined, the company has made investments in market driven mutual funds during the year.
However, the company has neither provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships and any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(iii)(a)
and (c) to (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

a. Inouropinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, Investments made
by the company are market driven mutual funds at prevailing prices or otherwise being market
driven at applicable rates and terms and conditions and therefore are not prejudicial to the
interest of the company.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

v) The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed
deposits as at March 31, 2025 from public covered under Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder and therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

Vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the
Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148
(1) of the Act in respect of the Company’s products to which the said rules are made applicable
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed records have been maintained. We have
however, not made a detailed examination of the said records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

vii) a. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has
generally been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Investor Education Protection fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Service tax, Custom Duty, Excise
Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues as applicable to it. Further,
excepting Rs. 4.18 lakhs for Provident Fund under Employees’ Provident Funds And
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 amounting to there were no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of these statutory dues in arrear as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six
months from the date they become payable.
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b. Disputed dues of sales tax, income tax, customs duty, wealth tax, excise duty, service tax, and
Cess, if any, prior to the effective date i.e., June 04, 2018 stand extinguished in terms of the
resolution plan approved by Hon'ble NCLT. This is supported by the legal opinion taken by the
company and various judicial pronouncements on the said matter, Having regard to this, there
are no dues of Provident Fund, Investor Education Protection fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Wealth Tax, Service tax, Custom
Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues, which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii) Inour opinion and on the basis of information and explanations given to us and as represented
by the management, we have neither come across nor have been informed of transactions
which were previously not recorded in books of account and that have been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961).

ix) a.  Inouropinionand onthe basis of information and explanations given to us by the management,

we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial
institutions, banks or debenture holders.

b.  Accordingto the information, explanations and representation given to us by the management,
we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

c¢.  Inouropinion and onthe basis of information and explanations given to us by the management,

the term loan taken during the year were applied for the purpose for which the loans were
obtained.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that
the company has used funds raised on short-term basis aggregating to Rs. 2,63,025.96 lakhs
for long-term purposes.

e. Inouropinion and on the basis of examination of the books of records the company does not
have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e)
and {f) of the Order is not applicable.

X) a. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

b. Accordingtothe information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3 (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xi) a. During the course of our examination of books of account carried out during the year in
accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across
incidence of any material fraud by or on the company nor have we been informed of any such
case by the management.

b. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us and representation received from the management,
no report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 has been filed with the Central Government.
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c.  Asrepresented to us by the management and as far as ascertained from examination of books
of accounts and records maintained in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices
in India, we have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the
company during the year and those considered relevant and material have been taken into
account while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

Xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xii) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

Xiii) According to the information and explanations givento us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed
in the Financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards,

Xiv) a.  The Internal audit of the Company has been carried out by a firm of Chartered Accountants.

The system followed, in our opinion, is generally commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

b.  Further, the reports of the internal auditor for the period under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and till the date of our audit, have been considered by us for determining the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures in accordance with the guidance provided in
SA 610 “Using the work of Internal Auditors”.

Xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented to us by the
management and based on our examination of the records, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xvi) a. Inouropinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1834. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the company.

b. The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance Activities
without a valid certificate of registration as required under Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

¢. The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable,

d. Inouropinion and based on the representation received by us from the management, there is
no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order
is not applicable to the company.

xvii) On the basis of overall examination of the financial statement, the Company has not incurred
cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit but has incurred cash losses in the
immediately preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.
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Xix) Onthe basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected period of realisation of financial assets '
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors, plans of the company’s management and the
support as provide by the holding company including as stated in Note no. 46(f)(iii)(b) and
based on our examination of the evidences supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts and assumptions as
represented to us up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due for payment.

XX) The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Xxi) The company does not have any subsidiary/associate hence consolidated financial
statements are not applicable to the company and thereby reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the
Order is not applicable

For Lodha & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s ICAl Registration No.: 301051E/ E300284

Qh&Co
o NG
"0

Place: Kolkata \NEAN Ashim Kumar Ghosh
Date: April 22, 2025 59 Aret Partner

Membership No: 054565
UDIN: 25054565BMOPSB2889

Page 14 of 16



ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of
our report the Members of ESL Steel Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of ESL Steel
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based onthe internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated under the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (“COSO 2013"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Acompany's internal financial control with reference to financial statementsis a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
dispaosition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in COSO 2013.

For Lodha & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's ICAI Registration No.: 301051E/ E300284

Place: Kolkata
Date: April 22, 2025

Ashim Kumar Ghosh
Partner
Membership No: 054565
UDIN: 25054565BMOPSB2889
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ESL STEEL LIMITED
CIN: U27310/H206PLCO12683

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023
& in lakhs)
Particulars Nots No. T Asat Aa st
Masrch 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
ASSETS ) .
Non-cufrent assats
(a) Property, Plant and Equigment g 4,24,867.90 4,43,743.07
o} Capital work-in-progress 6 a 2.23,198.98 1.70.013.23
{c} Other Intangible Assets 7 37.675.40 42,128.38
g Financial ASSets.
{1} Other Financial Assets 3 8.311.33 9,542.42
(%) Non Current Tax Asssty (net] -] 2.730.96 2,179.45
in Daterred Tax Assets (ret) 48 2.28,400.55 2.23,006.73
g Otner Non Current Assets 10 ﬁ' 34 7.225.19
Total Non-Gurrent Assets " $.31,171.48 8,57,935.47
Currant asags
(a) Inventorios 1 §9.680.02 1,06,339.74
(b} Financis: Assels
(} Investments : 2,101.95 2.001.50
(4] Trade Recenvables 13 2,455 81 11,070.27
(iif Cash and Cash Equivalants 14 5.488.85 15,950.80
(v} Bank Balances otner than ()i} above 15 16,535.84 11,397.04
tvj Dther Financial Assets 15 2,065.35 2.637.11
(< Othat Currant Assets 17 22,869.54 33.453.71
Total Current Assets 1-%%.& 1%17
TOTAL ASSETS 10, 1
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(&} Exuity Share Capital e 1,64,903.02 1,84,503.02
b} Dtner Equity 19 2,48,191.98 2.74.865.34
Total Equity 4,33,095.00 4,95,068.26
Linbilitins
Non-current liabllities
(4] Fimancial LinDilithes:
() Borrowings 20 1,08,345.47 1,48.895 66
{4) Lease Liabiit'es a9 237091 2,503.75
b} Provisions 21 72,782.06 12,328.07
Total Non-Cutrent Liabilities 1,34,498.44 1,73,726.83
Current lisbilities
[E1] Finoncial Lisbibties:
(i) Borrowings 22 1,08,4687.21 80.432.66
(i) Lease Lisbiities a9 30,336.51 21,631.57
i) Operational Buyers' Crecit / Suppiiers’ Creait 45 79.259.48 86,364.88
i) Trade Payables 23
. Totsl Outstanding oues of micro and small enterprises 9,887.63 4,653.72
- Toral Qutstanding dues of creditors other than micre »
and small enterprses 68,033.74 55,737.09
(v} Otrer Financial LiaBities 24 1,30,855.68 70,099.15
1] Other Current Lisbitites 5 B4,383.64 1,28.102.50
(] Provisions 26 17131 186.28
Total Current Liabilities 5,22,175.58 4,47,193.88
Total Liabilities §.56,674.02 §,10,920.68
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10 10,80.789.04
Matenm accounting policies and other accompanying nales {1 to 51) form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our repart 0l ven date

For Lodha & Co LLP
Chartered Agcountants

Ashim Kumar Ghosh
Partnar

Place Kolkata
Daoteg: Apri 22, 2025

Sensitivity: Confidential (C2)

For afyd on bahaltof tha Board

&"amﬂlﬂ

(DIN 1 077147100)
Non Frecutve Direcior

Anand Prakash Dubey
Criiaf Financiat Oficer

(DN 7 10914990)

Whole lime Director and CEO
Maiad  Ehawdhan

Manish Kumar Chaudhary

me

M No. ACS 23037
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£5L STEEL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2025 b
_____———————————__""'* {Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars Note No. Pariod andad Year ended
March 31,2026 March 31, 2024
Revenue from Gperations
Sale ol Products 27 7.92,763.92 - 8,30,046.22
Other Opesaling income 28 21,943.77 27.784.85
Total Revenue fram Operations J 8,14,707.69 8,57.831.07
Other Income 29 13&.&3 4,032.85
Total Income 8,28,210.61 8,61,663.92
Expenses
Cost of Materiais Consumed 30 4,17,963.02 4,36,188.28
Changes in Inventones of Finished, Process Stock and Stock- in-Trace 31 4,231.25 14,508.97
Employee Benefits Expense a3z 22,583.81 22,589.61
Finance Costs # 33 42,453.42 43,161.44
Depreciation and Amarisation Expense 34 44,387 50 46,300.78
Other Exponses 3B 3,28,431.89 3.61,153.18
Total Expenses 8,60.060.89 9,24,202.37
profit/ (Loss) betore sxceptional items and tax (31,840.38) (82,338.45)
Exceptional ltams 36 = (2,579.22)
Profit/ (loss) before tax {31,840.38) 164,917.67)
Tax axpensa: 48
(1) Current lax i o
(2) Deferred Tax {5.221.07) 31,839.15
Profit/ (loss) for the year (26,619.31) {86,756.82)
Other Comprehensive Income:
(i) tems that will not be reciassified to profit or lose 37 {236.80) (124.89)
(i} income tax retating ta nems that will not be reclassified to profit or l0s5 48 82.75 43.64
Other Comprehensive Income {net of tanes) (154.08] (81.26)
Total Comprahensive income for the year ([comprising of Prafit/(Loss) and
Othar Comprahensive Income far the year) {28,773.36) {96,838.07)
Earning per Equity Share [Face value of Rs, 10each]: 42
Basic and Diluted (1.44) {5.23)
Matenal accounting policies and other accompanying netes (110 51) form an integral part of the linancial statements
As par gur report of aven date For and on behall of the Boa rs
ForLodha & CoLLP N :
Chartered Accountants A Sumathi Ravish Sharma
(OIN: 07147100) (DIN : 10914990)
Man Exec Dirscor Whole time Ditector and CEO

nim Kumar Ghosh
Partner

Place: Kolkain
Dated: Apnt 22, 2025

Sensitivity: Canfidential (C2)

oonwiat Gt dlaany

—
Anand Prakash Dubey Manish Kumar Chaudhary
Chief Financial ONicer Campany Secretary
M.No. ACS 23037
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ESL STEEL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Particulars

A, Cash flow from Oparsting Activities
profit/{Loss) before tax

Agjustmant to reconciie ProfiviLoss) before 13x 10 nat casn generated from operaling
aclvities

Depreciation and BMOrization expenses £8,300.78
mwwmmuwmamww 307.B8
Sundry Credit balances/Provision ro \onger required written back {7,018.29)
Protit on Sale as per Finance Lease =
&lmmm-ﬂﬂ 1,085.72
Unreatised (gan}/ LOSS on forgign currency ransiaton and wansaction {457.47)
ot gain/{loss) on Denvative (Nstruments on fait valuAtiON througn prof and 0SS {15.24)
Interest Incame s (2.196.54)
m&muﬂmcmmmmvmﬁmwwhmdm (137.37)
impairment Allowance for doubtfui debts, Agvances and doposis 117.86
Finance Cost 43,161.44
Operating orofit before Working Capital Changes 16,230.10
mmmmw=
Decrease/lincrease) in inventonies 33,7007
(Decrease)/ircrease in Trade Payables. Other WWWUI&I
Provisions (12.534.62)
WMao}mew 94,621.00
Decrease/{increase) in loans and aavances, Otner financialinon-financal asets and (5.282.35)
oiher a55ets
Casn generated from / (used in) operauons 1,26,134.30
Income 1axes [paid)retund (nef) 282.12
mmmmmmmmmw 1,26,418.42
8. Cash fow frem Investing Activitias -
Psyment Bgainst Property, Plan and Equipments ncluding intangible assets and (47.423.75)
movement in Capital Work in Progress v
Realisstion against Property, Plant and Equipments : . 20.05
Movement in Fued wmmmm.mumtmmm 4,382.62
Investrrent in mutual funcs {1.31.693.43)
Proceeds against redemption of mutual furds 1,31,832 69
interest recenvea 2.159.62
mmmmmmmmmmm (40,712.20)
Cash flow from Financing Activities
Repayment of long-tarm BArOWIngs {46,041.60)
Receipt against NE-Erm DOTOWINgs -
Procecas/(Repayment] from short-lerm noriowings (net) 34,391.06
Payment against Lease Liabilities (21,666.38)
|ntarest and olhar DoTowang cost paid {39, 940.17)
mmmmmrwmmnm:muinm ] MM
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash pnd cash equivalents (A~B+C) 12.447.15
mhanamhoqmmumwmdmm 3,503.65
15,850.80

mmmmnmﬂﬂmwlﬂhwu!ﬂ




ESL STEEL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FORTHE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
2 = A e

{Ra. in laikhs}

Notas
1. The abave Statement af Cash Tiow nas been prépared under Ingirect Method as et out in Ind AS 7,"Statement of Cash Flows™ as notiied under

Compan s Act, 2013

2 Ing AS 7 Cash fiow glatements requires {he entmies 1o prowde disclosure that enabie users of firancial statements to dvaluate changes in
Laniities Brising from financing activities, including both changes ansing fram casn fiow and nor-cash changes. opéning and closing balances in

sbilities arising from fing actviles and cha n s res pre as follows: "
As
arp— March 31,2024 | Cash flows® Non-Cash Fiows
[on-curient bomowings [Refer hote no. 20] 1,48.895.66 12,423.00 {61,573 19)
Current maturitigs of tong term dedt [Refer Note no,
22] 46,041.60 (46.041.60) 52,291.60
Istwn Term Bosrowings [Refer Note no. 22] 34,391.06 21,784.55 .
Lease Listilities [Refer Note no. 39) 2414072 | {6.400.36) 14,967.08
intereat accrued but not due 0N DOMTOWINES [Refer
Note nc. 24] _ 855056 (6.550.56) 14,078.47

Includes cash flaws an account af both principal 2nd interest.
-+ NOn-cash flow ¢nanges includes current/non current clagsificalion, foréign excnange moverment, amortised cOStanc clner adjustements.

4. Casn and cash equivalents consisis of the following for ine purposa of tne Cash Flow smemam-

Particulars Az st
March 31,2024
Balances with Banks
tn Cuytrent ACCOunts 15,450 80
Fixed Depoaits with original matunty of (2ss than 3 montns £00.00
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note No. 14) 15.950.80
Mglerial accounting policies and ciner accompanyng notes {11a 51) form an integral part of tng financial statements
&
=
As per our report of even date on benalt of the Boaro of Dwrectors
ForLodha & Co LLP - '
Chiarterec Accountants : A Sumathi Nan-Executive Diregtor
(OIN: 071477008
Kumar Ghosh Ravish whiole time Director and CE
Panner {DIN - 10914850)
—
Anand Prakash Duboy Chnief Financiat Officer

mm:\ f\;{'\'lu,.”r-:\l'. .

Manish Kumar Chsudhary L Company Secretary
M.No. ACS 23037
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ESL STEEL LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2028

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

ESL Steel Limited (“ESL" or “the Company”} is a public lirnited company in ndia having its registered office at, Siyaljori,
p.0. Jogidih, O.P. Bangaria, p.S. Changankyari, Bokard, Jnarkhand and is engaged in e manufacture and supply of
Billets, TMT Bars, Wire Rads and Ductile iron(Dl) Pipes and also deats in Iron Ore, Pig Iron and lron and Steel Scrap
products generated while or for the purpose of manufacturing these pfouucta. It also produces Matallurgical Coke,
Sinter and Power for captive consumption. The Company caters 1o the needs of canstruction, automabile, industrial
machinery and equipments and water Infrastructure development. The company is 3 subsidiary of Vedanta Limited.

RECENT ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS
2.4 Application of new and revised standards: .

Effective April 01, 2024, the Company has adopted the amendments notified by the Ministry of Corporate Atfairs
[MCA) related to the introduction of Ind AS 117 “insurance Contracts”, along with conseguential changes 10 other
standards including ind AS 101, 103, 104, 105, 107, 109, and 115, which address accounting and disclosure
requirements for insurance contracts and financial guarantee contracts. The amendments also include changes to
ind AS 116 "Leases”, specifically addressing accounting and disclosure requirements for sale and leaseback
arrangements.

The adoption of these amendments to the extent applicable to the Company did not have impact on the profit of
loas and earmnings per share of the Company for the year.

2.2 Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Carparate Aftairs (*MCA"} till the date of authorisation of the financiat statements has not issued, under
the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, any new standards or made amendments to the existing
standards under the said Rule which are applicable to the Company.

2.3 Tne Board of Directors have approved these financial statements {or issuing 1o the shareholders for their adoption.
The revision to these fi nancial statements i permitted by the Board of Directors after obtaining nacessary
approvals or at the nstance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have peen prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards treferred to 3s
~ind AS$"] notified under the Compenies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) read with Section
133 of the Campanies Act, 2013 ("the Act”). The Company has complied witt? ind AS issued, notified and made
effective till the date of authorisation of the financial statements.
Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Indian Accounting Standard 1S
initiatiy adopted or 3 revision 1o an exisung Indian Accounting Stgndard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.
Basis of Praparation
The Financiol Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convenhion on accrusl basis exceptfor:
a) certain financial instruments that are measured interms of retevant Ind AS at lair values/ amortized costs at the
end of each reporting period;
b) cenain class of Property, Plant and Equipment which on the date of transition have been fair valued 1o be
considered as deemed COSLS; and i
¢} Defined benelit plans- pian Assets measured at fair value

Sensitivity: Confidantial {€2)
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NOTES 7O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
sernvices. ‘

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS-1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and Schedule Hl to the
Companies Act, 2013. Having rega rd to the nature of business being carried out by the Campany, the Company has
determined its operating cycle 38 nwelve months for the purpose of current and non-current classification.

The functional currency of the Company is determined as the currency af the primary economic environment in
which it operates. The Financial Statements are presented in indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the
nearest wo decimal lakns except ptherwise stated.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 8 \iability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes 8ssels and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the

ability to observe inputs employed for such measursments;

a) Leveli: Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets of liabilities.

b) Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable, either directly or
indirectly for the assetor tiability.

¢) Level3:inputs for the asset or liability which are not pased on observable market data {unobservable data).

The Company has an established control fra mework with respect to the measurement of fair value. This includes a
finance team headed by Chief Finsncial Officer who has overall responsibility for overseing all significant fair value
measurements who Tegularly reviews significant unobservable inputs, valuation adjustments and fair value
hierarehy under which the valuation should be classified.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE)

Property, plant and eguipment are stated at cost of acquisition, construction and subsequent improvements
thereto less sccumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. For this purpose cost includes deemad cost
on the date of transition i.e. PPE which nave been fair vaiued on wransition date to be considered as deemed COStS
and comprises purchase price of assets or its construction cost including inward freight, duties and taxes (net of
input tax credit availed) and other expenses incidental to acquisition ar nstaliation and any cost directly
attributable to bringing the assets inta the location and condition necessary for it1o be capable of operating in the
manner intended for its use. in addition interest on borrowing to finance the construction of qualifying assets is
capitalised as a pan of the assets cost until such time the asset s ready for it's intended use.

parts of an item of PPE having differsnt uselul lives and material vatue and sub®equent expenditure on PPE arising
on account of capitalimprovement of other factors are accounted for as separate components.

The cost of replacing part of an item of PPE is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if itis probable that the
future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably.
The costs of the day-to-day senvicing of PPE are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when Incurred.
Assets 1o be dispased off are reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less costio sell.

Property, Plant and Equipments that are not ready for intended use as an the balance sheet date are disclosed as
Capital work in progress (CWIP). CWIP includes Project Development expenditure, equipment to be installed,
construction and erection costs, elc. Such costs are added to the related items of PPE and are classifed to the
appropriate categories of PPE when completed and ready for ite intendad use. Expenditure directly relatable to the
implementation of the project prior 10 commencement of production and stabilization thereof being for such use
are classified as Praject Development Expenditure and disclosed under Capital Work-in-Progress (net of income
earned during the project development stalgs;.

The company's leased assets {other than those deait hereunder as Mining Assets) comprises of land, building,
plant and machinery eic and these have baen seperately shown/disclosed undef PPE/ Intangible Assets as Right of
Use (ROU) Assels. y
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

C.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Depreciation on PPE except stated below, is provided as per Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 on straight
line methed,

Certain Plant and Equipment have been considered as Continuous Process Plant on the basis of technical
assessment. Depreciation on upgradation of Property, Piant and Equipment ('PPE’) is provided over the remaining
useful tife of the entire compaonent/ PPE.

in case the cost of part of PPE is significant to the total cost of the assets and useful life of that part is different from
the remaining useful life of the asset, depreciation on such pan has been based on internal assessment and
independant technical evaluation carried out by extermal valuers.

Depreciation on PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Based on abaove, the usetul life
as estimated and considered for depreciation are as follows:

Gltqpn" Useful life
Buildlngs Jto 60 years
Roads 10 years
Plant and Equipments 3to 40 years
Computers and Data Processing Units 3o Byears
Furniture and fixtures, Electrical instailation and Laboratory Equipments 10 Years
Railway Sidings 15 Years
Office equipment 5 Years
Vehicles
- Motor cycles, scooters and other mopeds 10 Years
- Motor Cars under Own Your Car Scheme 4Years
- Others BYears

For Buildings and Plant and Equipments, the useful life has been determined based on internal assessment and
independent evaluation carried out Dy technical expers. The useful life in case of remaining assets have been
taken as per Schedule i of the Act. The company believes that the useful life as given above represents the period
over which the company expects to use the assets.

Pipe Moulds of 350 MM and above included under Plant and Machinery are depreciated over a pericd of threa
years. Other such moulds are charged to consumption in the year of issue,

Right-of-use assets are amortised from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

Mining Rights capitalsed as Intangible Assets are amortised on unit of production basis over total estimated
remaining commercial proved and probable mine reserve of respective mines as determined by technical expert.

Machinery and Insurance Spares which can be used in connection with an item of PPE and whose use arg
expected to be irregular, are amortised over the balance useful lite of the respective PPE.

The management believes that the useful lives as considered above Is realistic and reflect a fair approximation of
the period over which assets are expacted to be used.

Depreciation/Amortisation methods, useful tives and residual values are reviewed, and gdjusted as appropriate, Bt
each reporting date.

Sensitivity: Confidential (C2)]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

MINING ASSETS

Acquisition Costs d

Costs associated with acquisition of lease/licenses and nghts to explore, stamp duty, registeation fees and other
such costs are capitalised as Mining Rights and classified under Intangible Assets. Other assets pertaining 0
mining operations are capitabsed under respective head of Property, Plant and Equipment. Bid premium and
royalties payable with respect to mining operations is contractual obligation for carrying out such operations and
are variable in nature being linked to the market prices of the mining'pmduce. These are expensed and considered
as cost of the mining produce as and when related arising as per respective agreements/ statute.

Exploration and evaluation

Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred after obtaining the mining right or the legal right to explore are
capitalised as exploration and evaluation assets (mtar:gi!ue assels) and stated at cost less impairment. Exploration
and evaluation 2ssels are assessed for impairment when facts end circumstances suggest that the carrying
amount of an exploration and evaluation asset may exceed its recoverable amount.

The Company measures its exploration and evaluation assets at cost. These are classified as Property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets depending upon the nature of the assets and applies the classification
consistently. Exploration expenditure includes all direct and allocated indirect expenditure associated with
exploring specific mineral resources which includes depreciation and applicable operatng costs of related
suppor equipment and facilities and other costs of exploration activities.

Stripping cost

Developmental stripping costs in order to obtain access to quantities of mineral reserves that will be mined in
future periods are capitalised as part of mining assets. Capitalisation of developmental stripping costs ends when
the commercial praduction of the mineral reserves begins.

Production stripping costs are incurred to extract the ore in the form of inventories and/or to improve access o an
additional component of an ore body or deeper levels of material. Production stripping costs are accounted for as
inventories to the extent the benefit from production stripping activity is realised in the form of inventories.

Other production stripping cost incurred are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

The stripping cost incurred during the production phase of a surtace mine is recognised as part of mining assets to
the extent the current period stripping cost exceeds the average period stripping cast over the life of mine and
recognised as an asset if such cost provides a benefit in terms of improved agecess to ore in future periods and
certain criteria are met.

Developmental stripping costs are presented atong with the related mining rights and are amortised over the
remaining useful life thereof,

Site restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs.

Provision is made for costs associated with restoration and rehabilita tion of mining sites as soon as the obligation
to incur such costs arises. Such restoration and closure costs relate to the costs for removing and
decommissioning production facilities, the forecast timing of settlament of decommissioning liabilities and are
typical of extractive industries and are normally incurred at the end of the life of the mine. These costs are
estimated on the basis of mine closure plans and the estimated discounted costs of dismantling and removing
these facilities and are capitalised along with mining assets with corresponding provisions being included under
Provision for Site Restoration of Mines. The capitalised asset is charged to the Statement of profit and loss over the
lite of the asset through amontisation over the useful life of the respactive mine. The provision is increased in each
period by unwinding the discount considerad for arriving at the present value and the same is adjusted 1o the
Statemnent of Profit and Loss. Estimates made as above are based on local legislati Jndmr other agreements and

Arn rardnisme marimdieaibo
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

E.

F.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN MINING ASSETS)
Intangible assets are staled a1 cost of acquisiton/deemad cost on transition date, comprising of purchase price
inclusive of taxes and duties (net of Input Credit) less accumulated amortization anid impairment losses.

LEASES
{i) Company as a lessee .

The Company’s lease assets {other than those dealt under as ‘Mining Assets’) primarily consist of (sases for land,
office space, transit houses, vehicles, plant and equiments, intangible assets, furnitures and fixtures etc. The
Company assesses whether a contract is or contains 2 lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is. or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to controi the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the nght to contiol the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether:

{i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset;

(i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease; and

(iii) the Cormnpany has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability where applicable for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less {short-term leases) and leases of low value assets. For these short-term and
low value assets, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expanse on a straight-ine basis
over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any inital direct
costs lease incentives, They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencemeant date on a straight-ling basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments.The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a correspanding adjustrnent to the related right of use asset
if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. The lease
liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to refiect interest on the lease liability and
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. ROU asset are separately presentadidisclosed
under PPE/Intangiple Assets. Lesse liability obligations is presented sepefStely under the head “Financial
Liabitities” and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

{ii) Company as a lessor

a. Finance Lease

Leases which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased item are classilied and accounted for as linance lease. Lease rental recaipts are apportioned between the
finance income and capital repayment based on the implicit rate of return. Contingent rents are recognized as

revenue in the period in which they are earned.

b. Operating Lease

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substanually all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease except where scheduled increase in rent compensates the Company with expected
inflationary costs.

Sensitivity: Confidential (C2)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

G.

DERECGGNITION OF TANGIBLE, ROU AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

An item of PPE/ROU/Intangible assets is de-recognised upon dispesal or when no future ecenomic benefits are
expected to arise from its use or disposal. Gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an item of
PPE/Intangible Assets is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amaount of the
asset and is recognised in the Statement af Profit and Loss.

IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE, ROU AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS  +

Tangible, intangible and ROU assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment. In case events and
circumstances indicate any impairment, recoverable amount of assets is determined. An impairment l0ss is
recognized in the statement of profit and l0ss, whenever the carrying amount of assets sither belonging to Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) or otherwise excesds recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of assels’
fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. if assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows from
the use of the assets are discounted 1o their present valua at appropriate rate.

impairment losses recognized earlier may no lenger exist or may have come down. Based on such assessment at
each reporting period the impairment loss is reversed and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. in such
cases the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amaunt
that have been determined, net of depreciation/amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities {financial instruments} are recognised when the company becomes a party
to the cantractual provisions of the instruments. The company determines the classification of its financial assels
and financial liabilities at initial recognition based on its nature and characteristics.

The company categorizes financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value into one of threa levels
gepending on the ability 16 obsenve inputs employed for such measureme nt:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable, either directily or indirectly for
the asset or bability.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability which are not based on cbservable market data {unobservable inputs).

. FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initiat Recognition and measurement
The financial assets include investments, trade receivable, loans and advances, cash and cash equivalents, bank
palances other than cash and cash eguivalents, derivative financial instmmenﬁ and other financial assets.

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
issue of financial assets (other than financial assetls at fair vaiue through profit or loss) are added to or are
deducted from the fair value of the financial assers as appropriate on inital recognition. However, trade receivable
that do not contain a signiticant financing component are measy red at transaction price.

1.2 Subsequent measuromant

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following categores:
(i) at amartised cost,

(i) at falr value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and
{iii) at fair value through profit or loss (FVTRL).

. .
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Financisl Assets st amontised cost
A ‘financial Asset is measured atthe amaortised cost if the following two concjitiuﬂs are met:

(i) The asset is held within a business whose objective is 1o hold these assets in order 10 collect coniractuat cash

flows and

(i) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates 10 cash flows that arg solely p_ay;'rmnis of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

.

Amortised Cost is determined using the Effective interest Rate ("EIR") methad. Discount or premium on acquisition

and other fees or costs forms an integral par of the EIR.

Financial Asset at Fair Vaiue through Other Comprehensive Income (FVT ocCt)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income it these linancizl assets are held
both for coliecton of contractusl cash flows and for selling the financial assets, and contractual terms of the

financial asset give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest.

Financial Assets at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial Assets which does not meet the criteria of amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income are classified as Fair Value through Profit or loss. These are recognised at fair value and changes therein

are recognized in the Siatement of profit and loss.
1.3 Derecognition

The company derecognizes a financial asset or a group of financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantiatly all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset to another party.
2. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

2.1 Initial Recognition and maasuremant

The financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loan and borrowings, derivative financial instruments and

gther financial iabilities.

Financisl liabilities are initially measured at fair vatue. Transaction costs directly atiributable 1o the acquisition of
issue of financial liabilities (ather than financial liabiliues at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or are

deducted from the fair valug of the financial Uabilities as appropriate in initial recognition.
2.2 Subseguant measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurament. financial hiabilities are classified in the following categories:

(i} at amortised cost, and
{iiy at fair value through profitor loss (FVTPL).
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR}
method. When the financial liabilities are derecognised, gain or losses are recognised in the Statement of profit

and loss. Discount or premium on acguisition and other fees or costs forms an integral partof the EIR.

Financial Liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

financial Liabilities which does not meet the criteria of amortised cost are classified as Fair Value through Profit o
loss. These are recognised at fair vaiue and changes therein are recognized in the Statement of profitand loss.

2.3 Derecognition

Afinancial iiability 15 derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Mot Ghacdhas
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARGCH 31, 2025

3.

DERIVATIVE AND HEDGE ACCOQUNTING

initial Recognition and Subsequent measurement V

The company enters into derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate
the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates in respect of financial instruments and forecasted cash flows
denominated in certain forgign curfencies. The company uses hedging instruments which provide principles on the
use of such financial derivatives consistent with the risk management strategy of the company. The hedge
instruments are designated and documented as hedges and effectiveness of hedge instruments to reduce the risk
associated with the exposure being hecged is assessed and measured at the inception and on an ongoing basis.

Any derivative that is either not designated as a hedge, or IS SO designated but is ineffective as per ind AS 109
»Financial Instruments”, is categorized 2s a financial asset/ financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss.
1Transaction costs attributabie are also recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Changes in the fair value of the
derivative hedging instrument designated as a {air value hedge are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Changes in the fair vaiue of the derivative hedging instrument deaignated as a cash flow hedge are recognized in
other comprenhensive income and presented within equity as cash flow hedging reserve to the extent that the hedge

ig effective.
Hedging instrument which no tonger meets the criteria for hedge accounling, expires or is sold, terminated or

exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. Any gain or loss recognised in ather
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity remains therein till that ime and thereafter to the extent hedge
accounting being discontinued is recognised in Statement of profit and loss, When @ farecasted transaction is no
longer expected lo occur, the cumulative gain or loss accumulated in equity {s transferred to the Statement of
profit and loss.

. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities including derivative financisl instruments aré offset and the net amount is reperied
in the balance sheet where there is @ legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to setile on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the iiability simuttaneously. The lega lly enforceable
right must not be conungent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A tinancial assel is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered 10 ba
impaired if objective evidence indicates that one of more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset. The company recognises loss allowance using the Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL') mode for
financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The company méasures the loss allowance for a financial assets at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
(osses if the credit risk an that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit
risk on 2 finangial instrument has not increased significantly since mitial recognition, the company measures the
loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal te 12-month expected credit iosses.

in case of rade receivables of contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the
company reasures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

M\m‘g-, G&ﬂw dhay
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

- 8

INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at lower of the cost or net realizable value. Cost nf‘imenton’aa Is ascertained on "weighted
average' basis. Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down
below cost if the finished products are expected to be sold at or above cost. -

Cost in respect of raw materials and stores and spares includes expenses incidental to procurement of the same.
Cost in respect of finished and process stock reprasents direct and indirect cost for bringing the inventory to
present situation and condition including cost of material plus costs of conversion, comprising of lsbor costs and
an attributable proportion of manufacturing overneads based on normal levels of activity, Cost of mining iron ore
inventory includes bid premium, royalties, other overheads and costs incurred for mining.

Scrap and by-praducts are valued at estimated net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business (ess the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the
date of the transactions. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting date are translated at the
reporting date exchange rates. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a
foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Foreign exchange gain and loss
resulting from settlement of such transactions and from translation of monetary amount and liability are
recognized as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent considered as an
adjustment to interest Cost are considered as part of finanace cost.

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

An equity instrument 1s a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all
of its liabilities. Par value of the equity shares is recorded as share capital and the amount received in excess of par
value is classified as Securities Premium.

Costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from other equity, net of
any tax effects.

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a legat or
constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the Ronsideration required 1o settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting pericd, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recugnised and disclosed by way of notes to the financial statéements when thera is a
possible obligation arnising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the accurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or when there
1s a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the same or a reliable estimate of the amount in this respect cannot be made.

When there 13 8 possible obligation or a present abligation and the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision or disclosure for contingent liability is made.

Contingent Assets are not recognized putl disclesed in the financial statement Dy way of notes to the financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefit is probable. -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

N.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Employee benefits are accrued in the year in which services are rendered by the employee.

Short-term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit abligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are erpénaau as tha related
services are provided., Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-maonetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in'which the employees render the related service
are recognizaed in respect of employees’' services up to the end of the reporting period.

Other Long-term Employee Benefits

The cost of providing long term employee benefits consisting of leave encashment that are not expected to be
settied wholly within twelve months are measuret as the present valué of the expected future payments 10 be
made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit
gcredit method. The benefits are discounted using the Government Securities (G-Sec) at the end of the reporting
period that have [erms approximating ta the terms of related obligation. Actuarial gains and losses and past service
cost are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the pericd in which they occur. Long term
employee benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of related obligation.

Post-employment Benafit Plans

The Company operates the following post employment schemes:

- Defined Benefit Plans

The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheat in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the
defined banefit obligation at the end of the reporting perfod less the fair value of plan assets. The Company’s net
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by Actuaries using the projectad unit credit method.

The liability recognized for delined benefit plans is the present vatue of the defined benefit obligation at the
reporting date less the fair value of plan assels, together with adjusiments for unrecognized acluarial gains or
losses and past service costs. The net inlerestcast is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of
the defined benelit obtigation and the fair value of plan assets. The benefits are discounted using the Government
Securities {G-Sec) at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of related
obligation.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit obligation, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on
plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling, are recoggized in other comprehensive income.
Remeasurement recognized in ather comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will
not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

- Defined Contribution Plan

Defined contribution plans such as provident fund etc. are charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when
incurred. Contribution to Superannuation fund and National Pension Scheme, a defined contribution plan is made
in accardance with the company's policy and is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

OPERATING AND OTHER INCOME
i REVENUE FROM SALE OF PRODUCT
Revenue from contracts with customers is accounted for only when it has commercial substance, and all the

following criteria are met:
(i) parties to the contract have approved the contract and are committed to perform their respective
obligations;

(si) sach party's rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred and psyment terms there against can
be identified;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

i,

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized on satisfaction of perfarmance obligation, when control
over the goods or services has been transferred and/or goods/ se[vices are delivered/ provided to the
customer, Delivery occurs when the goods have been shipped or delivered to a specific location, and the
customer has either accepted the goods under the contract or the company has sufficien] evidence that all
the criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue 1s measured a1 the amount of transaclion price (consideration specified with the customers)
allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold is net of variable consideration
an account of rebates, claims and discounts and returns. Goods and Service Tax (GST) and such other taxes
collected on benalf of third party not being economic benefits flowing to the company are excluded from
revenue. Accumulated experience is used to estimale and provide for the discounts/ right of return, using the
expected value method. .

Revenue in respect of certain contracts provides mechanism for pricing provisionally based on the price 85
per the Plaits Steel Markets Daily index repornt as specified in the contracts. In such cases, revenue is
recognised at such price on passing of contral of the goods ta the customers. Final settiement of the price is
based on the price applicable for a future period as specified in the contract. Such provisionally priced
revenue is marked 10 market at the end of the reparting period using the retevant forward prices for the future
period specified in the contract. Differential arising with respect to the final settlement and those on mark to
market basis with respect to such sales are considered as provisional pricing adjustment and included in the
revenue from operations and disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements.

Discount as estimated based on expected sales volume or otherwise is deducted from Revenue from
Operations. Past experience is used to estimate the discounts, using the most likely method and revenue is
recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not accur.

INTEREST, DIVIDEND AND CLAIMS

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Interest has been accounted
using effective interest rate method. Insurance claims/ other claims are accounted as and when admitted /
settled.

EXPORT BENEFITS

Export incentives are accounted for in the year of export if the entitlements and realisability thereof can be
estimated with reasonable accuracy and conditions precedent to such benefitis fulfilled.

P. BORROWING COST
Borrowing cost comprises of interest and other costs incurred in conngction with the borrowing of the funds. All
borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the sffective interest method except to
the extent attributable to qualifying Property Plant Equipment (PPE), minining assets or other intangible assets
which are capitalized to the cost of the related assets. A qualifying PPE Is an asset, that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences 1o the extant considered as an adiustment to the borrowing costs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Q.

T.

BUYERS' CREDIT/ SUPPLIER'S' CREDIT AND VENDOR FINANCING

The Company enters into arrangements whereby banks and financial institutions make direct payments to
suppliers tor raw materials, services and project materials. The banks and financial institutions are subsequently
rapaid by the Company at a later date. Thase are generally settled within 12 months for raw materiats/ sernces and
within 38 months for tha project maternials. Where these arrangements are with 2 maturity of up to twelve months,
the economic substance of the transaction is determined to be oparating in nature and these are recognised as
operational buyers’ credit/ suppliers’ credit and disclosed on the face of the batance sheet. Payments made to
vendors are treated as cash item and disclosed as cash flows from operating/ investing activity depending on the
nature of the underlying transaction. Where such arrangements are with a maturity beyond twelve months and up
to thirty six months, the economic substance of the transaction is determined to be financing in nature, and these
are presented within borrowings in the balance sheet.,

interest expense on these are recognised in the finance cost. Payments made by banks and financial institutions 1o
the operating vendors are treated as a non-cash item and settlement of operatignal buyer’s credit/ suppliers’ credit
by the Company is treated as cash flows from operating actwity reflecting the subtsance of the payment.
Settlement of dues to banks and financial institution are treated as cash flows from financing activity.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Research and development cost {other than cost of fixed assets acquired) are charged as an expense in the year in
which they are incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognized on systematic basis when there is reasaonable certainty of realization of the
same. Revenue grants including subsidy/rebates are credited to Statement of Profit and Loss Account under
“Other Operating Income” or deducted from the related expenses for the period to which these are related. Grants
which are meant for purchase, construction or otherwise in relation to non current assels are racognized as
Deferred Income and disclosed under Non Current Liabilities and transierred to Statement of Profit and Loss on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the respective asset. Grants relating to non-depreciable assets is
transferred to Statement of Prafit and Loss over the periods as specified for meeting the obligations related to such
grants.

TAXES ON INCOME

Income tax expense representing the sum of current tax expenses and the net charge of the deferred taxes IS
recognized in the statement of profit and l0ss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
equity ar other comprehensive income. -

Current income tax is provided on the taxable income and recognized at the smount expected to be paid 10 or
racovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Finencial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deterred tax
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assels are generally
recognized for all deductible temporary differences with respect to cemy forward of any unused tax
losses/dapreciation to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Defarred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 1ax assets
against current tax liabilities and when these relato to the same taxation authority. Current 1ax assets and tax
liabilities are offset whera the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and inten either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settie the tiability simuitaneously.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realized, based on tax rates (and lax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end ol the reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
1ax asset 1o be utilized. ?

Deferred tax items in correlation to the underline transactions relating to Other Comprehensive Income and Equity
are recognised in Other Comprehensive income and Equity respectively.

EARNINGS PER SHARE 3

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/{loss) altributable to the equity holders of the
company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per
share is computed by dividing the net profit attributabie 1o the equity holders of the company by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been issued upan conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are identified and reported taking into account the different risk and return, organisation
structure snd in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief-Operating Decision Maker
(CODM). CODM Is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
financial results, forecasts, or plans for the segment.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ASSUMPTIONS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION AND UNCERTAINTY

The preparatian of the financial statements in conformity with the measurement principle of Ind AS requires
management o make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions
affect the application of accounting palicies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period 1o period. Actual results could diffar
from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates, Differences between the actusl results and estimates are recognized in
the year in which the results are known / materislized and, if material. their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements,

Application of accounting policies that require significant areas of estimatior, uncertainty and critical judgments
and the use of assumptions in the financial statements that have a significant risk of causing 8 matenal adjustmeant
to the carrying maount of assets and liabilities in the subsequent period are disclosed below. The notes dealt with
in Note 4(a) to 4{h) below provide an overview of the areas that involved a high degree of judgement or complexity
and of itams which are likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions furning out to be different
than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements are included
in relevant note together with information about basis of calculation of each affectad ling item in the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 5
bl

a} Depreciation / amortisation of and impairment on Property, Plant and Equipment / Intangible/ ROU {
Assets. &
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are depreciated/amortized over the estimated useful
tives in accordance with Internal assessment and Independent evaluation carried out by technical expert/
Schedule 1l of the Companies Act, 2013 and estimate for proven and probable mineral reserve, taking into
account the estimated residual value, wherever applicable. ROU are depreciated on a straight line basis over &
the shorter of the lease term and useful lfe of the underlying asset. The Company reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to delermine the amount of depreciation / amornization and *
amount of impairment if any to be récorded during any reporting period. This reassessment may result in  ~
variation in the amount of depreciation and amortisation in future period.
The company reviews carrying value of its Tangible, ROU and intangible Assets whenever there is objective
evidence that the assets are impaired. The required level of impairment losses to be made is estimated by
reference to the estimated value in use or recoverable amount, In such situation Assets’ recoverable amount
is estimated which is higher of asset's or cash generating units {CGL) fair value less cost of disposal and its
value in use. In assessing value in use the estimated future cash flows are discounted using pre-tax discount
rate which reflect the current assessment of time value of money. In datermining fair value less cost of
disposal, recent market realisations are considered or otherwise in absence of such transactions appropriate
valuations are adopted.

In earlier years, the company determined the recoverable amount of the CGU based on the transaction price
in terms of approved resolution plan and impairment with respect to carrying value of the assels was
provided. This has been reviewed based on the assumptions and adjustments for forecasts as validated by an
independent Valuer appointed in this respect. which may vary subsequently requiring adjustment as and
when ascertained. According to such review, no further adjustment in the carrying value thereof has been
considered essential and thereby impairment recognised in earlier years have been continued. As at March
31, 2025, the carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible assets and Capital Work in
Progress is Rs. 6,85,742.28 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 6,55,895.68 lakhs)

b} Right-of-use sssets and lease liability

Ind AS 118 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted
with any optien to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such aption is reasonably centain. The Company
makes an assessmaent on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it
is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the gmtract will be exercised. In evaluating the
lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over
the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to the
company’s operations taking into account among other thing, the location of the underlying asset and the
availabiuty of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed 1o ensure that the (ease
term reflects the current economic cirgumstances.

¢} Impairment allowances on trade receivables
The Company evaluates whether there is any objective evidence that trade reclet'vablas are impaired and
determines the amount of impairment allowances as a result of the inability of the customer to make reguired
payments. The Company bases the sstimates on the ageing of the trade receivabies balance, credit-
worthiness of the trade receivables and historical write-off exparience. In case of variation in financiat
conditions of the trade receivable the amount of impairment as recognised may vary having a significant

impact on the Financial Statement. @
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2025

d)

€)

Income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determination of taxability of certain income and deductibility of certain
expenses during the estimation of the provision for income taxes. Also there are many transactions and
assumptions during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax determingtion is uncertain.
Further material judgements and assumptions are invalved for arriving at timing differences and
consequential adjustments on account of deterred taxation as on the balance sheel date.

The Company has significant amount of unused business and depreciation losses. Significant managemant
judgement Is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets (DTA) that can be recognised, based
upon the likely iming for utilisation thereof against taxable profit together with future tax planning strategies.
The management has reviewed the rationale tor continuing recognition of DTA recognised in earlier years
based on the likely timing and amount of profitability in future and expected utilisation of deferred tax
thereagainst. Accordingly, DTA of Rs. 2,78.653.89 lakhs as recognised in earlier years have been continued
and as indicated in Note no. 48, Rs. 88,989.38 (akhs representing business losses and depreciation has not
been recognised. Since these are based on assumptlions and projections and thereby are inherently
uncertain. The amount of DTA may u;ary in subsequent period depending upon then prevailing conditions,
circumstances and profitability.

Going Concern assumption

As indicated in Note no. 44 of the financial statements, Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate Change
(MoEF) wvidle its letter dated June 05, 2023 had revoked the stage | Forest clearance granted earlier and thereby
representations have been made by the company as well as by the State Government for reconsideration of
revocation as substantial progress has been made in identification and procurement of the land required in
this respect. Subsequently, pursuant to the request made by the campany for granting Forest Clearence,
MOEF has directed the State Governmemt for submitting the updated status and is in the process of
formulating a policy pertaining to procurement of Land for CA so that to ensura compliances in this respect.
Pending this, the company has applied for FC again in the month of March 2025 for continuation of the £C
granted earlier to the company and Project Steering Committee (PSC) of the State Government after
approving the preposal has forwarded the same to Divislonal Forest Officer (DFO), Bokaro and the same is
under consideration as on this date. Further, despite constraints in meeting long term funding reguirements
for want of CTO and losses incurred by the company, the net worth ol the company is positive. Even though
there is uncertainity in this respect as on this date and considering that effective steps including procurement
and transfer of land to the forest depantment currently being undertaken for obtaining required clearances,
considering the direction of Hon'ble Supreme Court allowing the continuation of the operatians of the
company and continued support by the Holding company for meeynig company's funding and other
requirements, the accounts of the company have been continued to be prepared on going concern basis. In
the event of the assumption for going concern not turning out to be true in subsequent period, the same may
have significant impact on the financial statement of the company.

Mining Rights and Assets

Mine Resarve and Site restoration Cost
Reserves considered for computing acquisition costs, siripping cost, casts as part of mining activity,
exploration and evaluation cost are reassessed at least annually. Moregver, changes in reserves as a result of
change in management assumptions could impact the amortisation rates and the carrying value of assets.
Provision for site restoration ore estimated based on available information, taking Into account applicable
local legal requirements, mining plans, data base based on survey report, current prices and discount rates.
Significant tecnnical and commercial judgements are required to determine the Company's astimate tor iron
ore reserves and provision for site restoration. All assumptions are revie aly and variations are
accounted for accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

h)

Commitment under MDPA srrangement

In terms of the Mine development and production agreement ["MDPA’} digned with respect to twa mine blocks
the Company is required to fulfil certain minimum preduction guantities each year from commencement of
mining lease. in the event, the Company is unable to fultil the required minimum production quantities, it
would be liable to pay penalty, as prescribed in the MDPA,

Based on management's evaluation of mining plan submitted ;nu also as referred to in Note no. 40{A){(d) and
40(B), the accounts have been prepared on the assumption that there will not be any shortfall with respect to
minimum quantity stipulated for production as required under MOPA.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

The present value of the defined benetit ohllgat'ions and long term employee benefits depends on a number
of factors Ihat are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. An actuarial valuation
involves a number of critical ynderlying assumptions such as standard rate of inflation,estimate of defined
benefit oblgation, discount rate, anticipation of future salary ingreases, mortality rates etc. as estimated by
an Independent Actuary appointed for this purpose by the Management. Due to the complexities invoived in
the valuation and being long-term In nature, a defined benefit gbligation is highly sensitive to changes in thase
assumptions. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual
definad banefit exnenses. All assumotions are reviewed at each reoorting period.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future
outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably
estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to
existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change.

In accordance with ARP, contingent liabilities prior to the effective date of NCLT Order have baen
extinguished which has been further substantiated based on various judicial pronouncements including
thase of Hon'ble Supreme Court of India. The said order of Hon'ble Supreme Court has been submitted to
various judicial authorities for disposal of the same and accordingly the same has not been disciosed in the
financial statements. Although there can be no assurance with regard to final outcome of the legal
procaeding, the company does not expect to have an adverse impact in this respect.

Management taking into account in-house and external legal pru!‘essbona;lnputs uses it's own judgment for
estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations/ against the
Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy. The carmying amount
of Provisions and liabilities and estimation for contingencies are required regularly and reviewed to take
account of changing facts and circumstances. :
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HOTES 7O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2028

{Bs. inlakhs)
L]
& OTHER FINAMCIAL ASSETS
Particulars L A
Reter Note No. Harch 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
s Secunty Depesas
Considered gooa i 52058 E85.82
Considared coubtrul t 12982 1.90
Less: mparment Allowance for gouttiul gapasit 8.1 {120.82) (1.850}
b Fuag D with Banks (having origing! maturity of mare than 12 months) 152 8,784.42 4,85.84
] niarest recwivagio on Meg depons 15.2 6523 2.76
w‘l-ﬂ 0.642.42
2 1 Moverment of impairment Allgwarces for doubiful deposits Forthe Yearanded  Forthe Yesr ended
Particutars March 31, 2025 _Mareh 31, 2024
Batence at the beginning ol the year 1.80 87.27
Recogrised dunng the year 137.82 -
Roversal duning the yea: . 45,37
Batance at tre 47d 0f the year 129.82 1.9
s
9 NON-CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET}
P A A3 mt Asmt
Raler Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Acvance incoma Tas \nciucing Tax gecucted at source 2.730.96 2,175.45
2,730.96 2,170.45
10 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
P i As ot As st
Refer Note Me. March 11, 2028 March 31, 2624
10l Capitat povances A4.161.68 712610
) Precad Expenses 8738 26.00
<) Other Non-Currert Assers 10.1 737.30 >
4,980.34 7, 19

L

W *
fa‘:'i"'"'"“

10,1 Onners Non-Current Assets represents slores and Spares smounting 10 Ra. 737.30 lakhs of Air Separation Unit given on finance lease which have Deen
transtersd 1o the |esdea on retumable basis st the end of tha term of the lease agreeTent as cetalud in Note no. 29.1

INVEMTORIES
Particulars

(U]
o)
Ik
ia}
{mi
i

L14]

it

Raw Matenials
Raw Matengls m transit

Semni Finisea Goods/ Work In Progress

Finisnea Goods

Finished Goods in uansit

Siores ano Spares

Less: Provision for Obsolate and Non-mowng Sicres ang Spares
Stores and Spaie Parts ip ansit

Less Provision tor Qbsuiote and Mon moving Storus ang Sgares

Scrap and By Products

Az at Asat

Retar ote No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
13.606.38 14,112.23

B.D62.60 e.123n

AB,595.42 52,191.82

4,182 60 3,334.49

» 13278 11723

na 19.299.82 2183596
12 (3.008.35} 3.267.57)
1.240.00 1.622.22

1.2 {46.87) (45.80)
10,806.73 10,315.16

$3,630.02 1,08,339.14

| TSI T Mol TS W
141 Stotes pro Spares SOk Mcludes stock of O Fipd Moyld of 52e 350 mm and above amourtieg 10 RS 2,319 35 \akhs (March 31, 7074 Rs. 1,56 0G akhs).

11.2 Tre Company Pes a pabcy of pr agarar and nan g Mores and spares 1o 8 ponod SDOVE tTwo yoiars, TR MOwemert i prowsions are o3
Tollows:
For the Yasr ended For the Year ended

Paniculars Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 20248

Batance 3t the begnmng of 1he year 331377 3.608.48

Rocogrised gunng the year - &

Reversal during the yoar {258.45) {294.71)

Balance bt the eng of the year 3,0858.32 3.313.77
1.3 Also refer Nota no. 43 ano 22.1 inrespect of charge aganstbo s

. "‘\
- .
: —t\
Vol Cha ] R
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MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

{R3. in Laxhs}
42 INVESTMENTS 2
Particulars A Asat
March 31, 2025 March 39, 2024
{nvastments measurad 8t fair value through Profit snd Lasa Units. Amaunt Units & Amount
Investment in Mutual Funds (unqueted]
(@} Aditya Bista Suntite Overnignt Fung- Direct Plan - Grawth Optan
(Face Vilue: Rs. 100} 1.15,962.32 * 1.601.84 1,54,550.06 2,001.50
(] Kotak Overright fund - Dwect Plan - Growth Qption (Face ; i
Vawwe: Rs 1.000} MInN ot = *
2,101.85 ai_m.in
12.1 Aggregats amount of quoted investmants in Mutual Funas 210095 2,00°.50
12.2 Aggregate amount of KAV of investments in Mutual Funds 2,101.8% 2.001.50
12,3 Particuiars of IFVeslments 85 1eGuired w1der S2cton 186(4) of e Comparies Act, 2013 nave ean misclosed hgtmn showa.
12.4 Az refor Notere 43 and 22.1 i raspact of chatge crestec pgMNSt DoOWINES
13 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Particulsr Asat Asat
Srseain, Rafer Note No. March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Unsecured
Considerac good 131 BE7I 84 11.,047.62
Consicered good, having sighificant mcresse in Cresit Fisk 13.1 577.57 22.85
Crocm Impaec 54.30 54.30
| es5: impairmert Aliowance 1of COuDIw. JeDts 132 (54.30) 154.30)
$,455.81 11,070.27
13.1 Tracta Ree gelng schedule based on the dus date for payment thers against are as follgwa: Ap ot Asat
Particulars March 31, 20256 Harch 11, 2024
Undisputed Trada Recaivables- Considered Good
Wthin tha Cregi period 7,380,10 9,250.02
Less than & Months 141635 1.497.93
& montns - 1 Yoar 2554 B0.66
1-2 Years ; 29.27 103.32
2.3 years e 78.82
Mgre than 3 yasis 5.55 36.04
3.877.84 11.047.62
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Sigaificant increase in Cradit Risk
Bmontha - 1 Yeat 574.87 15.08
12 Years 316 2.57
2-3yoors - 500
Mora than 3 years = -
577.97 22.65
Disputed Trade Receivables- Credn impaired
Le5s than § Morths
6 maning - 1 Year
1.2 Years » %
2-3yamis - 812
More than 3 years 54.30 4818
54.30 54.30
13 2 Mevement of impaiment Alcwances far doubtful dedts Forthe Yesrandad  For the Yearanded
Particulars March 31, 2028 Merch 31, 2024
Balarce at the Deginring of the yoar 54.30 70,37
Recogmsed durng Lhe yaar = -
Revarssl dunng the yesr (1807
Balance 9t the end of the year 54,20 430
13.3 Also rater Note ro 43 arc 22 1 In raspect of charge creatsd ARHNSL DOTTOWTES
14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Asat Asat
Meracusm Retor Nota No. March 31,2025 Mazch 31, 2024
i Balarces wih Banks:
- in Current Accounts 2.844.00 15,450.80
) Fixgg Depos ts with coginal maturity of less than 3 months 3,044 26 500.00
b 5.648.95 15,850
T e

14.1 Also refer hote no. 4310 respect of chadge d sgairst g

&2 ] Ve
3 1 .
Senaimaty: Confidents [[2) E_w ;t‘r
UL\ BUAAR /
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HOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

{Rs. in lakhs)
15 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N
Particulars Az 8t Asm
Refer Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
.

Fixed Deposs with 3anks (aving orginal matunty of mare than 3 montns) 15.1and 15.2 1 B4 11,387.04

-%ﬁ 11,387.04
- e N e M

18

17

15,1 Refer Note ng. 43 and 22,10 reapect of charge cromed againgt DOMowengs i

15.2 Flueg Degoshs with Lanks nciudes:

) fs 25,248.56 (March 31, 2024, Rs. 20,048 05 lakirs) (nclucing Rs 8,770 97 lakha (Marcn 31, 2024. Rs, 8,844,80 Lakns) 0.5ciosod under oiher non-Curmenrt aisats)
which have beer lodged with bank as margin money agamst Latter of CredsvBank Suarantees/OD facilites issuea/gronted by therm; and

DiRs. 71 80 laans (March 31, 2024 Ry 201 83 lakns) inciong As. 13.57 lakns [March 37, 2024 Ra. 9.04 takng) Si36i0 580 dmagr oiner PE0-curment asssly) ying with
Custamers/ Vercaors! Governmeant Authontigs in term of sgreement/orcers

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS *
Particulars L Anax
Raisr Note No. Merch 31,2025 March 31, 2024
2} Earnest Murey/ Sacurity Cepoits 1o Venders
Considered focd 33712 §23.16
Conswgered Doubriul 528 1.70
Less. impairmart Allgwanca for doubiful deposits . 8.1 [75.28) 2.70}
i} intersst racenabla 138.96 n.7a
{cl Faport incoertive recaivables 4056 126.50
) Other Deposits 163 1,548 71 1,548.71
2.,065.38 2.637.11

16.7 Movemsent of Impasmen: Aliowances for couterul Debts and Depasits
Forthe Yesrended  For the Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 Harch 31, 2024
Batance attro begnning of the year 770 4368
RECOENSOE ounng e yoar 67.50 -
Revarssl Curing ihe year - {35.98)
Balance at the end of the year Js.aa 7.70

16.2 Rafer hota Fe 43 and 22.1 10 raspect of charge creastad sgainat Darewings

15.3 M5 1,548.71 lakhs (March 37, 2024 Rs. 1,548.71 1akhs| has beer deposited in compliance ¢f the girection of tha Hon'ble jharkhend High Court in respect of
award grven in fawor of 3 vendor pertainng 1o the panod prir 1o Juns 04, 2018. The eompany has Fowever filed 2 SLP before Hon'ble Supreme Cowt of india against
e avearg of West Bengal Micro Smau Enterprise Facdiator Councii WBMSEFC] and The matier ‘s penging 03 on this date. (Refer sub note in Naote no. 40).

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Az st Ag at
s i Reter Nota No. March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
) Balance wath Govarmment Authonlies 17.3 8.783.32 2.268.78
o} Advances L supply of goods and seraces 174
Consicered good 8,035.35 15,247.32
Consigeras doublfyl “45.41 129.47
Less: imparment Allowarce for doubtful belasces 171 . (445 .£1] 125.47)
[ Prapaid Expenses 17.2 565463 8.372.58
(d) Agvances sgsirst salanies 987 43.87
i Othars- GST Claoring accounts 386.37 521.08
322,8089.54 33,453.71

17.1 Mevemant of impairment Allowances for deubtiul balances
For tha year sndad Farthe yesr ended

Panticutars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024
Balance ot the baginang of the yoar 12047 453.63
Recognised guring the yoar 31684 .
Revatsal during tho year Yol 324.16]
Baance at the ana of the year 445.41 118.47

17,2 Incluces Srount pais 10 rolated parties against Brano Fees for 1he financial year 2024-2025 [Reter hato ro 38)

17 Jinclugdes
2} Rs. 1,288.43 lakhs (March 31, 2024 Rs. 1,288.43 lakhs) related (o Input Tax Cradil on burtout based on Me order of Hon'ble Supreme Cout of india;

b) Rs. 543.61 takhs (March 31. 2024, Rs. 525 57 lakNs) hirg 33 OEPOSIT PBIC uNdYy Protest AgRnst varnous jugicial authorities In tarms of (1a respactive Qroers, ang

¢} Rs. £.037.39 lakrs (March 31, 2074 Ra 6,037 39 (aehs) baing differentisi amouni of elackicity cuty cherjed by electricty provicer The company has fed wit
petiions before Hon'ble High Court of Jharkhand stating that smendmant mace pursuant 1o Jnarkhgnd Eisctnoity Duty [Amendgment) Act, 2027 for enhancing the
guly both of (re glacincly procured and fram caplive pOwer Blant are LitTa vires the prowision af Binar Eiecwicity Duty Act, 1948 as wali an Artcies 14, 19{1}igl and
285 of the Constitution of india. The matiar is pardie f for SACISLON 35 OF T Oa18.

17 4 Inciudes Rs, 2,026 85 laxhs (March 31, 2024° Ry, 4,470.50 lakhs) iying with vondors unoer cash and camy mﬂ SunplyalmBUM:BliW“‘.
spociied penod of time q‘ iy

17 5 Meofer Note no. 43 and 22.1 i respect of chaige creaied agunst Dorrowings

Semtibiaty Cofide~tal (C2) .1 FU 1
A

/ﬂ gk -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

18 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

i

Particulars

{m) Authorised:
10.02,00.00.000 Equity Shares o! Rs. 18/- vach (March 31, 3024: 10,02,00.00,000 Edqtuity Shares)

it} lssued, Subscribed end Fully Paid Wp:
1.84,90,30,224 Equity Shares of A5 10/- eack March 31, 2024 7,84.80,30.224 EQuity Snares)

18.1 Recanc hauon of ing number of Equity Snares Outstarding .

Particulars
Ko. of shaies as at the begirming

Changes ournng the year
Na. of shares s3 at the and

18 2Srarenciders holding mors than 5% Shares Equity Shares:

{Rs. in Lakns)

\ As ot Asat
Maich 31, 2025 Mareh 11, 2024

L3

10,02.000.00 10,02.000.00
10,02,000.00 10,02,000,09
1,84,903.02 1.84.9%03.02
1&& T.mﬂ

As ot Asat

March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
1.84.90.30.224 1,84,90,30,224

1.84,30.30,7%4 1,84,90,30,224
N e s~ T

L AsatMarch 31,2025 March 31, 3024
Hama of Shareholder Mos % holding Nos % ha
Vodanta Lunisd 1.76,55,53.040 D5, 430, 1,76,55.53,040 494

18.3 The Compary has one clags of shares raferred to as Faquaty Shares Pavicg a parvalue of Rs. 107-. Each Holder of Equity Snases 15 eMrieg 1o one vole par share. in
the event cf Lquidaton of the Company, the ecuily sharchoiders wili be entitled to Tacarvé assets of the Company ramaiming after distnbulion of at! praferantiel

AMOUTLY, IP PrOporticn af thair sharahoiding

OTHER EQUITY
As at As 3t
i i Maech 31,2025 March 31, 2024
{a) Capits! Resarve 183
Agper last Balance Sheat 9,59,008.68 $,59,908.62
(1] Capital Re on g 189
As pof last Balarce Shast {1.74,593.58) (1,74,5%3.58)
<) Securities Premium 18.2
AS per IpSI Balsnec o Sheet 1,79.036.44 1,7%,036.44
{d} Retained Earnings 183
As per last Balance Sheat 16.89.3856.20) (5,92,548.13)
Prafit/{Loss) for the Year (26.613.31) (96,756,802}
Transter from Qther Comprehensive InCome 154.05) {81 25}
s (7,16,150.56) (6.89,386.,20)
{e) Other Comprehensive Income 194
Re-maasurement of dafined bensfit plan
As per Last Balance Sheet . -
Otner Comprahensive income tar the yoar {154.08) (8Y.25)
Transfer to Rotaned Earnings 15408 81.25
!:il,“!!‘l.ll 2,74,9685.34
19.1 Capital Rasenve
A) Copital Resgrve ingludes:
4] Rs. 9,61.215 97 lakhs recog on Con @ang Recuction of Eguity Sharg Capuat of the Company on jur 14, 2618 {1 18rms of Hon ble NCLT Order

Gated Apri 17, 2018.

b Funthes on smaigamation of erstwhile VSL with the company with eftect rrom Octoser 01, 2018

i} Deftorertial of As. 519 85 lakhs arsing on cancellaton of eguity shares acquirgd by erstwiile VEL pursuant 19 the "Ext Ofter eguisalont 1o the lace waue of

the Lquity Shares; ang

uj Difterentinl of Ris. 1.831 14 lokhs witn respect 1o the cost of investment in the books of VSL and face vali.e Mereo! war agjusted to Capital Resarve.
B} Capital Raserve on Amalgamaton recresenis the gfterential of conSIGeration Pard L.e. eCuity SNEres MSuEy w iN (BSPSct (D 16! ASSES and resenes acquired

consecuant 1o amalgamanon af erstwhile VSL with the company.

1%.2 Securities Pramium \
Securilies Premiurm (BEreserts the amount ieceived n excess of par value of securtes ard
Compacies Act, 2013,

Yok Chavdivan -

18 availsole roré;\nmmn a3 spacdied under Secuion 52 of
»
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

"~ (Rs, n Lakha)

19.3 Retained Earnings ‘

Retaired earmngs represent the amount of accumulates adrang Ll of the pary Thisi Other Comy ‘ncome ¢ (Rs, 958,27 lakhs)
{March 31, 2024 (Rs. 804.17 takhs)] felaling 1o remeasurgment of gafiregd bane’t plans inet of @) whiCn Cannot be reclassilied to Suterrant o1 Profit ard
Loss. "

19.4 Dther Comprehsnsive Incoma

This irciuges gain/icsses on CaNned Genelit obUEatons wh ch is Dansie:eg 1o rewined earmins pa stated «n Naote 19.3 above.

20 BORROWINGS .
Az st As at
Particulars
Reter Note Mo. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured Borrowings §
(@) From Banksy:
i | L
o s . 221,202, 30820 3 1,41.010.13 1,84,220.46
Total {a) 1.41,010.92 1,864,220 46
Unsacurad Barowinga
i) Irter Corporate Depusis from Holging Company 02,2030 138 8,185.20 10.716.80
h Term Loan from financial Insttution 204 12,431.78
‘ 20,826.98 10,716.80
L es5: Disposed under Current Maturity of Long Term Dedt- Unsecures 2z (8. 77180} {2,521.60}
Lass: Disciosad uncer Current Matlrity of Long Term Dent- Secured 2 [43,520.00) (43,520 00)
1,“&5‘ ! 1,45.495.68
20.1 Sacurity
Term Loan from Danks is secured by

@) First ranking pan passu chaige Dy way of Fypathecetion gn ali Property, Plam ang Equipments inclucing miangitie sssats of 1he Borrower, incluging the
Dank 8CLOuNts ang ihe banx Salances eanmarked against the Interest Senaca Reserve Account and Smounts lying therain;

bi first ranking pen passu charge By deed o rypolhecation on hovember 28, 2018 and October 0B, 2021 In favour of Vistra FCL fingie) Limited, secunty
ustees Dy way of deposit of 1,993 35 acres and 284 45 acres raspactively of titls cess of mongageable lanas.

&) Catporate Guarantee, in favour of the Secunity Trustes for The berelit of ihe Lenders in g form and subsance sausiactory (o the Secunty Tiustee, Trese
snall be collecu vely referred W a8 1hy “Security™; and

€} Negative Pludge tver shares of the company L.e. post merger heic by tha Holding Company, Guaranior (M/s Yedorta Limited L e. the Holang Company 1o
Ne:d 76% of the shares of tha company 8ng Non Disposal Ungenaking of these shares i 1avaLr of the Securay Trustee scting for the  encers.

202 Thawnterest rate far the above loans (anges rom 7.82% 1o 10. 70%.
203 Repesyment terms:
Yaar Inter-Coarporate
Terrn Loan frem Tarm Loan from Depaosit from
Banks Financial Institution Holging Company
2025 2028 43,520.00 €.250.00 2.521.60
2028 2027 43,626 00 618175 2.521.60
021 2028 43.620.00 . 2,52160
20282029 10,450 1: - 630 40
20.4 Term Loan lrom RN Bl insTLLion s by uncom ang Die corp ¢ tee By MfS Vecsnta Lirmited,

20.5 The amourt disciosed hersin abowe reDfasents the BMOMSEd CoSt N ACCOIGANCO WILK g AS 108 “Firarcial Instruments”,

21 PROVISIONS
As st As Bt
T Refer Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(o} Provision for Cmpioyes Benalits 32 1.973.62 148398
b} Prowision for Complarce Costfor EC 219 20,556.58 40,556.58
ic) Provigion o+ Site Resteration for Mines n.a 307.48

211

02

251 88
22,702.06 22,328.02

Prowision for complisnce coat Tor EC reoresents cost 1o be incurred being the csumatec cost of COMPENsation gic., for forest area Qiversion, wild tite
Seveloprment and green Delt COMMETVatgn ang OINGr CONCEMS 1aIsad on public heanng for granting EC based on 1he repor of EWA corsultant appeinted in
terms of TOH as detatied in Note ro 44

Prowigion 10r sile restoration for mires relales 10 com y af suGe, mire closure and rehabditaticn obligafions. These amounts have teen
tompLied based on the Mining Plan submimad o the authority and will be incurred on closure O The minas over B period of 1.0 § years. Duning the yesr, tha
COMPany Nas ru-a55e5500 SUCH €OST 10 be mcufred i terma of the Mining Regulsticn basec or evaiuatan carried oW Ty an Indgpendert Professional ang
impact retecs 85 sTated Merdwn Below in Note na. 21 3 has heen racognised in the Dooks af accourts «

Serstaity Conl dental (01 e

0
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WOTES 10 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 -1
{Rs. in Lekns)
21.3  Movament of the Prowsions are 88 folows: .

Provision far Compliance Cost for EC Provision for Sie Rastoration for Mings
Particulary For the year ended  For the yeargnded  For the yesr snded For the year snded
Illt_!_'iﬂJl!S Farch 31, 2024 March 31, 2029 Mareh 31, 2024
Baiance #t the Dag nning o the year 20,556.58 20,556.58 307 46 264.73
Recogrised during the ysar - L -
FINBNCE oS! uriienghng - % - 2492 2273
Wiitter back/paid duning 1he yeu - ki - 80.52
Balarce atthe ere of the yaar 20,556.58 20.656.58 ] 251.88 307.48
BORROWINGS i
Refer Note No. As at As at
g Maich 31, 2025 Match 31, 2024
Secured Borrowings
Working Capatal facibtios from banks 23 6,888 82 £.391.06
Cunenrt Maturitigs of lang 1eem dobts- Sacured 0 43,520.00 43.520.00
Unsecurad Bomowings
imer-Corporaie ODeposits tom Holding Company 12 2and 38 49,286 99 28,000.00
Currant matwrites of long-term cabls 0 8.711.60 2.521.60
;] .21 £0.412.66

22.1  The company Nips Bvaiec bormowings (bt fund snd Non-Tung DBSEd) Irom Danks on the basis of secutity of curian: 3ssets. The quarerly return of statoments

of cutrert BL5als MeC in (s respect ae in dgreament with the books of SCCourts.

722 The company Mas GDIANEd varous short term loans rom the Hoiting Company 1o moet ts funding requinemnt 1of corrpliance with respect to CTO snd have
assutance from the HoQing Company 10 oblain further SSHSANCE §S BNd Whe regured in IBms of SuUPPon stter proveded by tham. Such facililies ars

UNSCUIRE T d Irtarest Daanng
22.3  Alsgrefer Noteng. 43 inrespect af security aganst working capital faciltas

TRADE PAYABLES
Asat As st
Fafcyncs Rafer Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Payable for goocs anc servicas
Due 1o Micro anc Smail Erterarises 231 9.867.63 465372
Otners 68,033.74 §5,737.08
78,001.37 60,390.81
TEEme

23.1 Disciosure of Trace payahles 85 recuires under section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprses Development (MSMED] Act, 2006, based on the CONfirNaton

and information avaiabie with Ihe eompany regarding the statis of suppliers.

Partigulars Az ot As
_March3N.Zeas _ Mecch3l, 2034
aj Principat unit rem BiNINg but not due as 31 year eng 9.887.63 4,653.72
£ Inieres: Bmaurt remaring urpad Bul not dud 08 ot yea eng i 5
o) interast pai by the Company in terms of Section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprisas Development Act,
2006, miong with the emgunt of INe paymert made 0 e suppler Deyond the appenied Cay Outing the year ¥ . &
O} interest due ang payabie for tha penod Of c¢elay in making payment (which have been pald but boyond the
appoimed cay Ouring the yeor) Dul wihout sdding the mterest speciliet Lnder Micro, Small and Mediom Enteiprises
Deneiopmant Act. 2006 - -
¢] Inigrest poorued and reMaming Uunpaig ax at year end 28733 143,45
1} Further inter@at remaming due and payadile gven in the sucoseding years, untl Such Cate whan e inrterest dues as
anowe are aciLally paid 1o the small entarprise - 3
23.2 Trade Payable sgeing schedula hased on the outstanding based on the pariod from data of transsction are gs follows:
As at As et
Particulirs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unuisputed - Non MSME
Less tham 1 year 58,438.47 42,675.84
17 years 5.180.18 12,325.85
-1 years 462187 729.11
Hora thar 1 ysers 39347 329
65,033.74 55.737.09
Undisputed - MSME
Lesa thon 1 yaar §.613.74 423275
1-2 yoars 23312 323.48
23 yaars \ 16,98 96.55
Mgre than 3 yaars .79 0.84
[ 9,067.83 4,853.72
70,901.37 $0.380.81

| i ‘E\ f.'LﬁN s Ay oy . ~r -~




WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2028
e e

(AL in akhs)
i
23.3 Unbilled smount included sbove being lass than 1 year sre as follows:
Particulars As ot As at
Murch 31, 2023 March 31, 2024
Unadisputed - hon MSML 2244476 4,189
Disputed - Non MSME o A
Urdisputed - MSME : 2,845.90 1,695.62
Dispuled - Non MSME ; . -
25,290.06 5,506.54
24 OTHER FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES
Agat Asat
N Rafer Mote No. March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
5| Imerest acerued but not cua 29, 42 and 48 14.078.41 6.550.56
1) Farnest Mondy Daposit Security Deposd Customes 1.954.72 1,813.42
e Capial Vencors 15,802.21 16.189.74
{ay Dasrvatrve irstrumant Liability at 1air valua through profit and ioas inet] Shudipn 285.95 15.24
i3] Owers Payablas
Employees payadie 2,132.08 288126
- Brg Prem.um for (ron Ore 86,296.42 4061880
interest on Bid Pramium 4,357.20 »
-Qihers: C6 COMMiSSon aro uivers a8 2,768.69 2.030.04
1,30,6835 68 76,089.15
25 UTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Az ot As et
i e Refer Nota No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1a) Agvance from customers 25 1 and 38 84,844.75 1,08.073.73
e Statutery Duns Payables 9.530.8% 22,028.77
linciuaes Provigent Funa, GST, Tax deCuctel 81 SOLICE 8IC ) M 1,25.102.50

25, Incluchs Intorest Leaving advance of fls. 62,028 68 akrs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 86,822 55 lakns; recaived from helging company in termg of Apraemant ‘or Sale of
Iren Ore to be adjustas against shipment Mace Weresgdnst of o1 eupirdlion of the CONTTACT alorg with iMtarest a1 SBI 1Y MCLR+0 70 calculated & the monthiy

oUistanging balance
2¢ PROVISIONS
Thy Rafer Note No,
Provisior for Employee Senehts 321

L YN Wi "L

ehaldban a/ :

Sensanty Confidential (€2}

Asat Asat

March 31, 2035 March 31, 2024
17131 166,28

171.31 166.28
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HNOTVES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOP THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3, 7025

i

K (Rs_irs Lakha)
COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Particudary For tha Yesr anded For the Year endad
Rafer Natw No. March 31,3028 March 31,7024

Raw matarial 2nd olher materials consumed
Irveniary st the pegenmang of the yaor 20.23595 40,028 08
Add Purchases snd other reisted costs £ 4,10,195.06 4,7 5496.26
Less invenicry at the eng of the year 7 20,467 5% 0,235 98
301 a.‘“
30.! Beted o4 ite phymcal verdcalion of inventores camed out by an indep pr and on ecor with book sleck, the vanabon trareo’

¢ ADecrease)) have bean fed 10 he Cosl of Matansl consumed! Crenges i imveniorms of Finahed Procass Stock and Sisca -Tregw, Ths ais0 noiudes
ek Wik g an heap eSO MaAlenial

For tha Year anded For the Year anded
Partieulsrs Relar Note No., Haioh 31, 3028 Mareh 31, 2034
Cost of Material cansumad .
IrcreaseiOacTense] in Stock of Raw Materal [ESEEN T (4.916.23)
Changas in Inventories of Finiihed/ SemiFinlaned Goods and Siock-in-Trade
nerease/Dacrease; »n Stoce ol Smsted Goods {1203} -
IncrvaseiCacreass| ~ Slock of Process Stoca (24871} i2,786.79}
IncreaseiDecresse| n Biock of Scrags By-progucts 250 64 2,310 54

141

302 Cost of mete-wl o el oroe mmm:‘ RS andd cosl Tor own ge WSt OIS remEn INSuden uncer respactive head of
ATCFIFlE
CHANGES I INVENTORIES OF FINISHED! PAGCESS STOCK AND STOCK IH-TRADE

For the Year ended For the Yasr ended

Particitars

ReferNowNo. __ MuchILpss  Maeh3t:2¢

{ij  Inventaries at the and of the year

mj Fshed Gonos 432558 343172
B Piocess Sioce 48,596 42 52,191 87
e Sorap ! @y products 10.805.73 1831519
{#)  Inventorias # the Beginning of the year
f2ap Frsned Goooy 345172 8512
[o) Process Sinck Sa1987 SN0
)  Scrap fBy-proLcty 10,316.18 1233513
20,767.78
n 4,231.25 14.808.97

I} Aiso Refer Nate no. 301 1o amestments carted ot on secancdistion of abysical stock weih Dook Blork

3% 7 Dmaciosures as ‘aquired unter Ind AS 7 “inweriones” are 4y foliows: &
' ﬂrn_rﬂ'm For the Year ended

3, 2028 March 31, 7024
3 Reversal W A valig o 38941 1.780.98
&, irverton es rocogn sed as expenas 7TLET 40 8.20,600 12
EFMPLOTEE BENEFITS EXPENST
o For the Year ended For tha Year anded
articulars
Balar Nets Mo, HMarch 31, 2038 Horch 31, 2034
i L LY
(3,  Swenesend wages m 21,140 05
() Contribution 10 Provicent and Cvnes Funds az 1,744.55 1.002 80
(€] et wellae sapanses 143 ¥.236. 65
(@ Lest: Tronslenred to Capisl Work in Progress. &2 {913 57, esg.a

e ee—lE8351,

POST RETIREMENT EMPLOYRE BENEFITS
Thie thaCIOBLIOS Tequired unioet knd AS 9 on “Empicyee Boniglis™ are gwnn beiow:

i} Dafined Contribution Plans

The Company Makes contrauteens 1o Piewdent Fang, 5 valor ang b 5 g aivg T ¥ Ungar ine ScremAY, (he COMQAry 8 "O0uLred 1O Cant dute @
spEcitied percant sgeitumn BMount of ine payrol <oats 10 fund he Denefts. The CONTIDULONS 85 3pECH oo Lnaer ME law &e Ba:0 (0 INE respoctiva fund sel up Uy the gover nmaent
authorty Contib 5 tunds are SR 29 AN for the year Botn the empioyess and 1he C: v make v 10 tha Fyrgs at
spesited Dercentdgs of 198 e MRICYEE’S $8L07F 470 AgEragale COTINBLTONS BIONE WM INferast THarean are Dasd fo The ¥ en g, ceatn of of
empiayment.
Contritut ons to Detined Cantributon Plans, recognized 1or (he year ile 38 under;

Far the Yeor anded For the Year endad
Particutars March J1, 2028 March 11, 2024
Empicys's Comtrdunar tg Srovdent Fung 508, 54053
Employers Conlribul-on 10 Pension Scheme c Frifi] 13133
Empoyer’'s Contrilion 1o Superannyshon Scheme -~ - 4753 4563
Empiayet’s Cor oution 1o Net pnal Penwan Scheme ,-’{’?“ E p BESE 50.21

5 / s b
Q " " \" A -
&C ol A= e :
- £a o/
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NOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR Mwnmmm 31,2035

‘ (Rs. o Lakcha}
” REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Particutacs For the Yaar ended Far the Year anded
Rafar Marei 37 March 31,
i Mot Mo I MRS . mh 31, 004
Frwshet pnd Process S1oca”
- Expont Sales ’ 3592252 27,180 64
- Dormastic Sa.as - _'rm.m 07 B2
7,93 761 37 §,30,048 22
7.1 Disclosure a3 per Ind AS 118
Disaggregate Revenve
The D aak up wilh respact 1o Ths teveryl siresm o° e Comgany ate @ [ollows:
Forthe Year anded  For the Yasr endad Far the Year snded Forths Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2029 Marsh 31, 2004 March 31, 2025 Harch 31, 1024
s Gowernment Man-Government
Within india
~Blets m - 22.61338 12.3M.57
+ TviT paes 2996150 9.47002 2.16.467 53 1.50,607.48
Wore rodds B 213.073.50 1.16.987 67
Dipipes 1203.33 8,824 857 1,08 348 61 1,38,349.45
-PiG bon - . nms 80,534.08
= lron Ocm + . B2.083 20 90,358.74
- Ctnaes - s 13,857 64 20.547.33
Outaide India
= 1T oars . E 1,734.60 243,48
Wire rous - . 2116514 655108
- PG ran - 255184 4254
«lran Era - - L4 14 43604
3038443 T8,654.89 1'%— 3.27,395.88

#7.2 Reveniae from sale of pradests (S0 (R pear orgea March 31, 2025 iNGWGeS “OVENWE TOM CoNTEcts wiln cusiomers of Rs. 2591213 lgkna (Marsh 21, 3024 Rs
£7,145,.07 lashm) DAYSO ON NOVILONEL DTEINE OF Mark 1B maskel ORsis Bt The year erd and preing aSjustente iret) of Rs. 4.279.05 iskm (Maeh 3' 3024 As £ /06 63
Lakng) arsng on gccount of 9i'Tarent 3 on e {inel seftiement of such Jrmvsonely prced saies contracls.

27.3 Mager by of 1 Compiany s 88184 308 33ME1 BEVANCE O e afainst [alters 4 credils cash agae-s! Sotumants’ guarartees of Dafks af nationsl afancerg. Wher sa.es
@l made on crecd, the amount of : Y 0w NGt ary signub rancing e W B3 paymEnl terms are walk o inres monthe. As Pt Terms of e
SONaGT wilh €3 cLtamer s, &INer all perlanmance COUEFHENS ae i DE COMp.AIed within Grie yoa’ from 1he 08T Gl S.uCh CONTACES o the Comparry s & 1gh! 1o Teceve

Hom itn fa¢ all fomimated paformanse abugitiine AZcordingty. he C v Ais waailed

not geen the

] OTHER OPERATING INCOME

interms of Ina AS 115 and has

hrespact o Latians Thal reMANes Lrsal s'ed (97 arlially umatished] 3 INe calence sheut date.

For the Year ended For the Year anded

Farticulary Mafer Note Mo. Hah” Masch 31, %El_
Scrap/ By proGuzis ang Omhen Fel 12.851.64 10.544.33
Incenteve on EaporTs T4ED M.
Sundry Crodi dasncesProsison N oNge” raquied wWiiien back P #.017.53 %188

27,843, 77 17.764 §5

e
2B 7 Incudes cld deon Salsnces of Certain sLERL et se ca provoerss Trage Hectvabas B& W Mo Lofg et reCoveralle NEve BeEn wi e off wih ContespongiTE PIovIRIOn Mady

M eari e yeaT INEreagan T DeNg wi a0 back

o OTHER INCOME

For the Yaer snded for the Yees endad
ot Rafar Nota No. March 31, 2028 March 31,2024
ta)  Interest wcome on Faed deposds. Secunly Deponfs. overdioe debls eic measured at
Armorises cost 2ana L1 8
o] IPlefastinComS o Tnonomt assels Massared & SMONLSed cost 403 413
] het Ganon "oregn excnenge Muctuat o 23437 4111
4y el gaen on Dervative Insiruments of far vaiuahon thvough praft anc loss 1475 1zan
) Met Gan on Current Imvestrmants ot Fas Vaiue mugh profit snd loss . 13737
i Peofton finonce insse of Progerty, Mart and Equipmant m BRI .
w Histelanao.s noote 1.487.47 113882
13.502.42 403285

29.1 During the yoar, $40 TPD Ar Separelon Unit nas been gwven or ioase 00 & (org term basis &l 40 LpTort conssderston of As. 20,000 00 [okha. Thes Deing 8 fingnce isaie =
1M of Ind AS 116, the $aig asanis hoving writen down vilee of s, 11.236.01 [akhe has oeen deraCofn 480 gyt ng the Desmd 'esulling in a gan of By 8,762 99 akhs.
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NOTES 70 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

[Rs. It Lmkna)

) Post E " Dafined fit Plans:
The Post Employ—ert ool ned benals schems are mansged Dy TATA A4S 5 8 cefinwg Berebl pan. Ta Eresen? vale of COLLADAS 15 CRTETMINED CASED D MOEPENCET actat
ValLation uninyg 1 Projeciad Lini Ciedin Mathad, which recogn el B6Ch peoiod of servor 3 $WNG 150 10 20ionai wnt of empioyee Derelt eniilement and meas.res gach
Ut Separstedy 1o bl LR the el oobgalion. Ostas of such fund ere a3 'olows.

Gratuity (Funded) .
Tre Compary's gfanaty schema, i Selnad Cena’e olan o 83 per ihe Payment of Gratialy Act, 1372, covenng (ru Bugibie eTDioYEESs 3nd {5 ACMUNIEed INFOUFN Certar gratualy
fuad truste. Such panizy "unds, whose \mvasiments e MaNagrd by an Asuter, make Ry to vested yRES OF Thar T WHon reteemend, caslh, INCADAGTatioN

pT ce3salion of empoyment, af &% mouni caplired o Tthe basis o respeciive eMPioyees SR 800 (s Of EMPICYTENL. VESlNg OCTA!S LBGN Cometion of *ve years of
sewCe. The amourt o @ralul’y RayRlie i the emEoyees (sl drawn Dasic Yalary per monih comguTed procarhonatedy for 15 Gays martin o1 tar the rumber of caitulated vears
ol sanace.

The ‘llow g tables sl Torth e sarticulans 10 espect of afaressid Defimed Berelt pans of the Campary tor [Fe year enced March 31, 7025 and corrpsponding PEares foe (e

PrRWOUS year: L]
ial  Changein the praseml value of he delinsd berafh obiigation: ____ Gratuity (tunded) ol &
Az at As at
Mareh 31, 2035 March 31, 2024
Latikty st the tegnrmg of Ine year 2,743.1% 1.858.00
interest Cost 16216 11733
Curient Sedvice Cost 204 80 25545
Benelis peic (2z341) (258.37)
Remeagaremats - Duws to Firanc sl Assumgt ans mn16 EE.04
Remassurpmets - Due 1o Fepor ance Adjusiments 23159 Ko
Limbiy ot tha and of the yoar TN EXTEXTH
] Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assel
As ot Avamt
pir-] March 31, 2024
Fair valse of Plan Asscts af the Beginnng of 1ne year 1,998 07 1,287 84
Eaxpeciud relum on Plan Assels 933 94.8C
Coniributions by Ihe Comparny . -
Bene'its paid . .
Renessurements - Returr or Assets (Eaciuding interedt incame) 1595 2543
For vaiun of Pian Assels af 1he end of Ire yoar m m
fci  Ameunt recognised in Bilance Sheet
As ar As st
MIEE% Harch 31, 2024
Liapiity at ine #n0 of (Ne year 5 2,14218
Fai v o1 Plan Assats ot the a°d of the yeor 157435 135807
Amaunt recognised in the Balarce Sneet lloaso 7aans
g5  Components of Defined Banaflit Cost
For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Cusrant Service Cosl 19460 215049
Ieeent Cost 152.16 13113
Expecied ratun on plan sssets 199,35 ]
Totel Detines bere'il rECogrised (7 STatemant 3! Pro’l & Loss Accourt Ja 30202
(] RAzmeasutemsnls recoghised in Other Comprahansive Income
For the Year ended For ihe Year ended
HMareh 33, 2025 PMarch 31, 2024
Remeasuiemeniy - Due 1o Franciel Assumipbicrs Rl 66504
Remaasrerme~ts Due to Epenence Agusimeénts il 03
Remeassiomanils Heluh 0n Assals {18 85) {2' A3y
Remassurerients recughised v Ofer Compienans v ircome 1T 124.89
m B Shawt K
Asmt Asat
Harch 31, 3028 March 31, 2024
Opereng Nat Lab aty T44.08 575.54
Defined Berant Cosl /et voed in Stnement of Profit and Los3 Account 347.43 307.02
Remeasyremants recogn sad in OCI 236.80 124 09
Empuoyers Conbribution . .
Bene'it Pasd Daec!y by Lnterpise (I58.37)
AMGUN: 1eCOEN 585 N Batance Shes: Lices .
§)  PerCentage allofatan of puan assels in respac of fund managed by insurer m as lollows.

h\“u& cuc‘ﬂu .”‘lﬁ ol

Semitivity Configential 102

(=

_.__ah Rozang /57 /

-

\

—



EQWMMLM!!!EMMWMMEHH:&

m

¥ (M3, in Laichs)
The Prineipat actusrisl assumptions as al tha Balsnce Shest date are sst out a3 betow:
Asat . Asa
March 31, 3028 March 31, 3024
Summary of Financisl Assumptions
Discour: Rate . 743% T.10%
Future Salary tcrease i B.00% 8.00%
Salary Escalatnor. Afar bive Yoars .00 £.00%
Expwctes Reten o Par Assals 700 T 0%
Summary of Demographic Assurmngtisns
Horteity Rate [as % of TALM (2071214} (Mag ) LT Mortadity Tatoe] TO0.00 1000084
Oeadoil ly Tadie (@5 W of aDowe marsity rate) 5.00% 5.00%
VWitwdiawsi Rale 1% ta 8w 19 to b
Retiement Age L 60/58 Yenrs BHEG Vears
Avvage Future Sarvce 228 2348
‘W gniwd Average Ouralion 13.00 13.06

Notes '

11 ASSUTELGNS reiBUNG 10 Tulure sausry MCreasng, PHIOR, nierest 1ate for discoant & Overail sxprcied rale of relun O Askets have Deen Coms.cered Denod on relmvan
economL facions such ps illsleon, maluet growin Bng ather 1acion applicalie (o The perad tver which the obl gation is expecled 1o be seltled

“1 The Compary axpec!s 10 coninbiute R 407 50 takng o Gratuily und 0 3025-26

Sensitivity Analysin
{Particulars Cratulty
Ghange in g
Aasumption Maceh 31,2035
= o Banetin Obligs
Sa.ary Lscaaran -0 50% 14994
Saary Escaation LR 1A
Disesant Rates *i) 50% 139 83)
Pracaur: ety 12 50w 15274

hlmummm|Mmu:mnnw.mmuwuummmmmrwm.lmumuyhm‘rdmwmm
mmmmwhmcm% inting tha aitty of the defl: berell ozugat ons wilh respect 10 Ihe signilicant achanal BIasMgTions The Jame
mered (progeciad uril ekl Method) NEs been appied Tre manacs and fyoe of assumption used fre i SENE Lty SnEyias hikve Not besn changed s compared 1o the
pmos perod.

Estimata ol e Teerutil pay 7 sbpo Jte larma g U ned)

Asat As st
Particulars mn,au March 31, 3024
Yes 1 107 88 112.70
Yoar 3 95 80 7158
Yeard 9678 TRAY
Yewr 4 may 8017
Yoae & 1830 85.64
SUOSEGUEN! Yars (HeMaTing AMounl) 2.084.75 1,654 66
Other Long Term Employes benefits
Compenssted Absancss »

rmmmwmumuamm:mmm-muchrmurmm Barelil whith is Teatled as pan of Jiher comprehensive
IO n-mwmummwm\smnmnmmMmmmummhmmmmdlumuum:hm
ang March 31, 3004 are green Deioer

Asat As st

March 71, 2028 March 31, 2024

Privie god Lsave 4TS 77553
SCk Lewve 13824 11682
Average rumier of peuple amp ayde 1.8a7 T.825

Risk anatysis
Trunagn ity galned oenelit pians, the COmRaM 8 BAPESET 1U 3 NuMber 2! NEYS in 1he Cefined be"el? sians Masl sgritrcant risks perlanng to delaed banel | placs ang,
managomant's est matan ol i impact of iness sk e 86 Tollgws,

tmveatment sk

mam-.ua,mnnmvmrnmummwcmm-mmnmwmmmm orovided (o the™. The grasanl value of 1Ne S8HnC benel ]
Blan Cavilly is CHTUMED USng B Biscount e determined with raltrence 10 Ihe rate appicabie lor Government of ing'@ Donds. If the /eturn on BLEN 233l (5 Deigw IHs
199, 1| wall Creaie & plan delict

Intereat risk

A fecraass i the irteresl Tale &9 pusa assets will norave the pown bat ity

Longevity tlsk / Life ¥

he present value of 1he def neq Denelil Slan Lalrely is ca:Culaled waih rafarence 1o 1he Sest estimaie of IDe Tizlawiy of 9ian Dartcpants both Buni~g and =t Tne end of the
amatoyrent. An e easa if (he bfe axpeclancy of the plar part-COBnLE will INCIense the plar Lo Ty

Salary growth risk L

The present velue of tha ce'ine oene’s plan tabilly is cacuLted with reference 1o The Tulue salanes o olan
BN TR woll rareane e pan Lab Aty

Sewitrty Contidertiol (L2} ;.\\““M_ v/
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[CENET
Ll
] FINANGCE COSTS

panicut Faor the Year eaded Fartha Yaar endad
Retar Maote Mo March 31,2035 . March 31, 2024
fay  toteres: Expense on financial BaDdil 08 PO mugsured 31 FVTPL 5128884 ATELIS
i e Boarow g Govl (1@ L& cnarfed. Supplery Cmmmw-u| 177380 264025
{ci  Lass Iranstaried 1o Copial Waik in Frogress +339 {10.568.09) 7,097 181

: 4

(o)

R0

tumpwnuwukudﬂmwmmwwuwawnwmdmsmmmmm-cw!wu‘nlﬁmw:“,
0249 mwaunwﬁmwmmhm.muwwum‘mmdmls:swcm:

inmsest Eapanse incudes A3 26023 lakns PMarcr 37, 2004 RS, 1] Mmimmwﬂwum of Use Assats

DEPRECIATION AND AHORTISATION EXPENSE b
For the Yaar snded For the Tear anded
Pardouters Rator Nots No. Pareh 31,9028 parch 31, 924
{nj  Depreciation 3~ Tangbie Asuels § 28,084 30,636 89
i Amodsslion o intangole Asseis 7 ﬁys 765388
LTS e SSONTE,
OTHER EXPENSES
For the Year snied Fou the Yess ended
Toeasan Rafer Note No. March 31, 2035 Harch 31,2024
@i Conssmplion of Storss and Soares 20,687.51 12473
by Poweranafusi 52.844.38 4,705.74
ey Froygnt eng Forwatting Crarges 350,318.67 wsnn
gy Pant 1928 M7
g Rates and1gxes 121885 83037
Y INAUTENGE 2,108 46 157457
@  PRepars o Pantand Coupment 533827 348168
p  Reses io Buigrgand others B55.05 876,56
] Costalion arg Mauntenance EIEEnses 36,800 04 44,431.74
{)  Mecrire e Crarges 47758 ™maa
i Royaity, 8 Premyuim and otner Man PR Cees LLN] 5,56,805.43 1,85,753.88
] Brana Ceas 252 959051 0.620.08
iy Matesial Handirg [t 4,836.97 552228
) Lstegand Regstac Expanied 5844 Wl
oy Securiytapenses 234328 2.091.90
s ACvEIiseTaN ang Busirass Promaton Expenses 18208 1527
my  Troveling and Carvevance 118829 173053
) Legm wnd Professions: Fewt 3.500.05 4,044 10
¢ Paymeni ko Audnark 353 .02 5816
mp  Loss an SalniDiscand of Feeo Asscts (hatl 27936 0788
(v} Seongand Destribusien Exparaty ] 26547
™ mwhnmmmmﬂudnnmmn 1,881 02 1,832.68
ot lm.mwbwmww 196.51 9.60
(i) Prove-on tor Doubtthul Advancs 31584 108.26
) & mory Bplunces wilien -t 276548 1.085.72
o Ht-quwmmmﬂlm 54 £ 5 ] 41.09
|aa) OwerM szecanecus Expenset o el 6,482 54

> ;o _:"""_'"__lc_%ﬂ R

Royadty, Bid Premum and ulner mireng 1o8s ncludes Rs 13,597.34 Lakhs (March 31, 2034 As 38082 06 Akrs pesded on provisional TaLs pased on Wat notd ed won Ore
pu‘m.mrmwbludmol sucn orces oy IBM
IMcmmmIvmo'wﬂmlwmmwnm“mdumWﬂmquZl.mzmw-lmwoanidmwmmm
+.5% of the Tutrover #s "Baand Fed"™ hummnmm-mnw.mmu-mm-su!:ﬂsn \suns (March 3, 2024 s 11,122 16 akhs) aganst
which Rs 9.93857 |skhs (Maren 37, 2024 R 1mmmnmmwmum 'mnmmm«uummlummmmﬂpﬂ

Paymant 10 Auditors
ik Far the Year ended Fortha Yeas snded
. mn,gg! mm,m
L] Statutary Aukl Fae nio 35.00
(] Ceniicat-on 2l 30.50 21.00
el Out o Porket Drpaisés 552 216
7102 B88.18
Tne Board o'D'WIammmmwmﬂmw-m‘ A= . vmmwmmuwﬂ 37 81 Lakns 10 13

in3apananel O recions which 18 pmwwﬁdﬂl& wnﬂllnhlmlmm Goner sl Meanrg. t

qu;;g {',":n-'n-. ” A
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NOTES 10 Fl STATEMENTS FOR FIARCH 21, 2025
] (Bx. in lakhs)
3 EXCEPTIOMAL (TEMS
Partic wwuﬁl Forthe Year ended
Waler Wirncrawal Char fes %1 e 12,579.22)
= By

k7

.
36,1 Exceplons. Ile N1 {Mach 31, 2024 Rs 2 57927 \achs) reoresents waler withdrowsl charges petasng 1o sstier perica providec ss demandac and deter=uned By
Camocar Valley Corporat 30 uning the year anded Marsn 31 2024,

COMPONENTS DF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Year anded
Purjcaiary RatarNote He. Maroh 3, 2034
e ihat will Pof e reclass 0 10 Stotement of Profi &nd Loss .
Rereasuramant of Daf ned Sershit plang LP R {124 89)
-
MELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Mqum‘lﬁwhﬂw lnmmmwmummnn!mm a0 6 Tolnw:
N of the et and duserlp ot relationships:
A Company Relatioaship
Vazan Investment Limiled (VIL witmate Holdirg Company
Vegarta Lirving (VL] Helding Company
3 Koy Msnagemant parsannel Dasgnaticn
ArunMws Non-Executive Drecion
Subedn Kumar Ra. Derecior
Poovannan Sum '™ Dwector
Tramas Mathew Thumpeparemis. Dereetos »
Agrovast Agsiwal Hon Execitve Director (ASROITEnt w e * August 08, 2024)
AsmEn Kumar Gupta Whiole Time Direcior ang Chie! Executve Oficer {Uata Jaryary 23, 2025
Ravish SAaima Crue! Executive Olfice? [+ Appointment w e.1 lenuary 24, 2025}

e Eniran where KMP ar their clase member hawe significant influence or control or Group Entsrprises ar Companies under commeon contrel and with whom
transaction have Laken place during the ysar
Dharst Al Company Limided (BACL)
Stestite Pows* Transmesson imites (SPTLY
Vizhg Ganaral Cargo Baslh Private Lmited (VGCBPL)
HMaritme Venturas Privale Limited e
‘Wedanis Resowces Limited (VR
Vedanta Resources rvesimants Lim:ted WRIL)
Talwaro: Sasao Power Limites {FSPL)
Hinoustan linc Limited {H21 ]
laniha Electors: Trust (5ET)
Fenva Allay Corporshion Limited (FAGL)
MALCO Engigy Limited (Faiber Vesants Aluminium Lin tes) [MEL)
Stwriite Technoiogies Limaed (5TL)
Hinava Funays Pervale Umited (MRRY
Runayd Refinung LLF (Runaya) »
S#is Man nig Corpioration Limited (SMICL)
STL Dngital L ad (SO0
Sasa Rescarces Limiteg (SAL)

=] Reiated party transsction:

[Netura of Vransaction i
2013-34
Rocsvery of Exponses 6563
. e 352.50
[Purenase o' maienals 3 -
i=terenl Lapenses 527088
|Guarasviee Com ssian 7 71347
Corporate Cost Allgcalion §7g rembursmen! 145381
|Agvarioe recened aganst Sake of Matenals 1,431,134 00
of ucrap 61.01
f mateials s 65 851,75
Closing balance 83 st March 31
{irter Corpurie Deposh Feyanie 38,716.00
(Trage Paysbies 11,435.80
Lot ayaoie 551
.&cm of Eapenses Recevalg e
Adfvance from Cusiomer ' 868322 55
Gawraniee Comission payabte « 1.508 97
Corporate Guaranive fiven agairsi bonowings 199,948, 1%
rterest Paysbie 4,609 61 |

Send ity LonFaeta (2]

Mauwid Chavdbhay
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Entities whers KMP or tnaif close mamibar have

Mawiah avdbayy
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1 Tre above rew@ted paty rilormal on is Bsoeniled by The manageme and raudd Loon by the ausior

1. Inieapect of AROVE Parves, Ihe's ‘s N powisien for dounilal debts &5 on March 31 2025 ard 70 amount has BAEn wrina BaCK of wriller off dunng (NS yoar n ‘aspaet ol
gty due fromd fe them.

3. Pest Empiayee DENR11S and Girer 100 1 EMIpWGYeR DONEIS NEVE been GISCiosed ORSed ON Tel BMEntIes gNaton o SaNTES TUl D088 MOl INT LGN DIoMson Made
071 2CUuF3 DA%t 88 I 13me & avdeatie for all Ihe &MPIayses Togetnar,

4. Terms snd eonditions af ransactians with relsted parties o

All rarsactions are trom /ealed parties are MB0e in ardinary course of Susimess. For the yesr ended March 31 2075, the Company has Nat MCWORD A%y MpSH Me of

FOCRNIDIEE " AlNg 1D AMCLAE Owed Dy 0i'ed Dartios. TN T EIGEIEMART 3 UNZerTakeT 0UCN TNANCIA yODT T Dugh g Ire Poslon of [N ey e0 parly
0 thit marusl i wTHEH (7 relates carty oparmes.

n DHSCLOSURE AS PERIND AS 116
i ¥ oilowirg S1E thiz CRang+s n [N Safeng value of right of use sssels 'or The year ended Marcn 31, 7025

[Farteniara Tooliware ~Tand Tuidings Tqupment . Wehicie Tatal
A 42 1arch 11, G003 - .08570 5244 8% £8 111604 8210 4
Adtibon 1.541.41 140 1,360 80 w367 76,457 51
Celetion 1 = = = (3674 (34 74}
| : s 15.04 13w 1.3 A
siistion ﬁmﬂ 13} D] 1,40
‘at Mareh 31, 3034 1%_@7 i3, ELI%ER] :

Kar-cunent iease babiides
Total

B) T lodowng s the movement o lease (8ol es
Particulars

Qparurg
Aaditons

Finnnce Sout SEcTudt tunig the peniod
Asfjustmants sgarst assels
Datetions

Lt

PN one your a0T Fol Mol e Thy Tve yoars
1m0 ok

" Aso refar hote e 5 3 regaroing wase | abATy Daing reCognand p g &
aftorestaton lang.
i Forihe To adove, the Company has CeTlan cpaTalng ease for ummm.ummmwnm-z.wmwm

Expanidiure InCwTed on aceunt of ranis, SEyTHTS Undel SUCh ([1aSeS TuTTg Mg year and recogrined o e Profil and (oes
iharch 3, 2024 Rs 21175 lvna) i

amounts 10 s 1,971 26 Lakng

Wil Agfer Ngieno 29 1 inrespect of L leane ¥ INe COmMpany as & Lesscr

Masuls havdbay 5 Blrang ',.’
Sevutinty Cosfderia (11 -

——




MNOTES TO FINANCIULL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED MARCH 21, 7075

R, i Lakha)
CONTINGENT LABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT MOT FROVIDED FOR); 7
A} CONTINGENT UABILITIES
Particutars i M
— Maendieas _ march3t.zom
? Guarariers §var Uy UaTxs or DENDI of 1he Company 1000 10.00
o Mmmwmmmamun:m&m%lm|mm' 12.%c} 603733 6037.35
€ Electricity Dusty 0n Castive Pows: Plaet pursusnt td harkh Duty pt g2 75 5,459.09 32109
@ Desand suisec i toems of Mine D and Prox A {MOPA) snteres ;
weth State Government for iren Gre Mirgs (Aefer Note B owows ot ascertuinab.e 1.75.726.0
&l Demant for Logreaation of grade ol iror are from 53% 1o 55 in one staca at Nod < tron Ore
Mine 55,65 -
fi Demand tor 3lieged rcavabion of For ore "nes frm ion ore Gurmgs of er-lesses |0 voabon of
Rue 12 of Mnersl Corcession Rues, 2016 312
L3
@) i Tna C has oaen Nadah ron Ore and Manganess Bioce with Legse Asea of 177 31 Hectargs ond Nacee lron are Block with L asse Azea of 74 50
Hociares i Ddisne on hovembes 70, 2027, Tne Mine D snd Pr Agr (HDPA)} ed iMa by the Cormpany wit™ raspect 1o the shove two ron

Qe Blotk ouLiRE!ES T 1IN Muskmar Cospaict requrement for eBon pear of the cperTions.

The Company rece.ved demand ot ces datad Dacembar 03, 2012 aggregating Ry 1,70,760 81 takns ind cated Agnit 11, 2023 agmragating Rs. 4,045 40 wachs towarcs
penany for shorilal, m mmirme . despalon o The Nt year of the base Le. cpla November 19, 2022 ana for subsaquenl QuETA Tharen! Trom Novemoer 20, 2027 upio
Fetwunry 9. 2021 resnectivily for bt the mvaes, nwﬁm!mmmwmnmmwmmmmm made on
Provisioral boss and for The ~amancTy per S0 INelesfler ro such demand Nas deen rused. The Maragemars basec on the tagal aainion oBiainad o the matier is of the
Viirw hal Ing Temands for ShorTal. a8 Made Bga wst g Comany ara ot Vi 85 oet the previstons of aw and HDPA. Moresver, putsuant to the Revisio= Agpication ied
belore Aevis ol Asthordy, Mirstry of Mines, e 520 damand Nas tess sei awde and remandea bacs to he State G 19 pass 8 ordis Bires” afier dus
enmderst.on of Ine rERTEIRNEloNs madde by e CoTipEny and Vg Ihem opaorunily 10 make Their BUDTISEGNS ON the MMIEY, In vigw Of the mansgeme he
ODUEATaN 1o TINMLM CeSEAtoN GUANIty Nas Tesn met Cumutatively 67 ANPusl J8se SRC Pending fresh Jusessment by the Sipte Gevernment of Odis~s and &s svises
) latsl ty rastu g any p on of shorifall as per the SEove Semants or even oinerwise n terms of MDPA hus been envisaged and gver ftect 1o » tnese
liranc =l statemaws

whirtermis of tha MOPA, the'a 1 B sharifal n deseaich of kon Ove oy 1 B0 M on Ton as on March 33, 2228 as comauted prosarionatuly besed on the Asnus Production
Cycle ana g on Movernbar 13, 2025 (~Anryal Prog. Cycls™) un At of M procuchion dusag Ihe Currert gencd tnem Novpmioer 20, 2034 to Margh 31, 2025
Haz i he Annua| Dap: of ror OTe CGumy eiy Honed on g "5 ESTmane ¥ o (hareaga nil & expiciod 10 drae
n-'lhmdlumr'mwm ummmwmummﬁmw o dared Anceasany
Holes
A wire 4 1 manadement suoported by legal opnon end vanous LT pIONEUNCements. the of 17 %8 in respect of statctony WaD iny pror fo June 04, 2018
ara not lenabie a1 neor 1he Respiution Plan anoroved oy Horbis NCLT snd mg outfiow of lung with resgect to [nese & Bxpected The Company's olher gendng il gatiors
cOMprises o ClEMS AgENM e COMDATY o' [TOCERCTgs pending wein Stalulony G 5 a8 Tha C v has d al. its panding Migahons snd
mummmmmmw.wmmwmm,mmm,rmhummn-mmmmmzw:un Ao i TPus
respect

<j CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Ag at Anat
Particuisrs March 31, 2025 Merch 31, 2034
m)  Esnmated amount of contracts fkainng '8 be eseculed On Cemtsl @cGount net of
sCvaces] and nal srovided far 4251108 93,236,42
in Fareign Currency In Foreign Currency
b} Foreand Contract Outstanding
InUSD - 3087 A 1.25.72479
InELRO 1595428 -

D} Tre comipany s IMpoied carlan captal wams elc. of the capital projects pending completon 83 6N March 31 2025 Thness MEofts Mave beor mace under

Marufectuting and Olher Op = Wa L 4. 2079 'MOOWR Scheme’] nolifea by Cantral Board of Ingirecs taxes ang Cusioma whersby cusioms duty
Decomes paystie 2ilner an clesrances o' such Tems lor PUrDOSEs OF scraping theten! I N0 BuEh CLEATENCR 14 made. As sdvised legally, (he amour? of ouly mih
ronpect (o ihess smounbing To Re. 22,344 18 ekhe wilt ¥ on hap| 'R of sbove sivted everis.

quuz\ f-f'la-u fhay o

Senutaty Corfderinl (L



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2028
v

[Rs e tascha)

Segmant infermation

{8} Description of segr and pris 4 met
Tnz(:mw:-mnmlummmwmyum.muWmmmmPwnwhhu.m:uadwunkmm,Mmmum-unwsc'u
SN ihese producls of oThenvse N cennaciion therpwih fn term of ing A5 108 “Operaling Segmant”, the Company has bng busiress

Droducts g whis
sogment . on ong Stee. and relaied producis ang Bl oiner aCTVites fevolve ound the sadd Dusiress
(b} Gaographical information £
Tha ¥ s dor o ingia, Moy mmhmmmmmmummkmm-mmmwmahm
N0 sECh product s showr n IPe labie below
[Paricidars Fartha Fet tha Yea|
wridad
March 37, 2025] Merch 31, 2024
In india i
Batlats 2261338 1223057
- THIT cars 24582003 1.80477.50
Wiee rugs 2.13.07350 2.16,987.57
Tl ppes LIS56834 | 14217412
+PIG iran Tans 80,534 08
- lren Cre 8Z,081 370 93.368.74
- Othars 13,851 54 2055033
Outside india
+TMT bars 17380 245 48
- PG froe 253184 B42.04
-ron e 25,487 14 1442001
- Whire o 218814 4.533.08

(=) Theerm ave 10 sirgle custome: dueclly of @ 10Cty 1" whom more Men (D% o’ g reveTILE 1§ OE eRd

Calculation of Earning Per Shate is ay follows:

Particulars Harch 31, 2025
a) NaLProfU {Loss) or Gasic ane eiluted aamings par share ay pe! Statement of Prodit anc Loas 26.819.31;

Kt Profiv (Lovs) for Basic and Diluted earmings par share (26,513.87;
i Weghled sverage numibe 5 enu.ty sha'es 1or cal cuation of DENC 870 AT sarEngs Do

Number of mquity shares DUISTInENE o5 0 Maren 11 1.84.90,36 724

Agd: Mowenams! in Fauity $hares issued durng me perod .

Mmoer 0 eIty ENaTes oulslanging T.84.90,30,224

Wa ghted average mumber of equily shares considered for calcuation of basic and diuted 1,84,90,30,124
€l Earmngs per svare (EPS) o' Equity

Snare o Rs. 10¢- vach;

Basse EPS [R5 | la/n) (1ad

Dvlizea EPS (As e} 1 &y

>

M\v\uE‘\ ‘d-&fl'u dhay

Serstnty Lombgential 02

Far thve Yoar anded
Mavch 31, 2024
196.756.82)
{96.756.82

1,84,50,30.224

1,84.50.30. 224
1.84,50.30.224

1523
1521



NGTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE mmmjllﬂ
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(R, in lakha)
Tra Company nas avales vsnous Tung 8 NON- NG BANEE worsing CEoHRL "0CHTNS from banxs amountng 1o As, 1.08,500 L9k™s $8CL00 Dy Firsl ramang pan pilu Charge by
deed of Hypothecat e execuled in "aveur o Visita ITCL i) Lrwled 1 ower the of the coimmnt ausets of (e Compay SoTh presant snd fulere wdiodimg
stock of rawm materials, stoce- 1) ST linisted ooy, frished goocs. Mates and sparas. Furtner BICUTEd By B o 10 DOOK deSls, EmOUN aUINERGNE, mones
FRCanalie estmarts, Claemis and Dils of the Borgwer w7 LyMg @° Camion packed Uy Board Resoiwton 'rom the Holging company

lshnmumuW&MWMWMM¢MWmMMMMF-nmmm
Funruary 02. 2027 had deferred Ihe grant of EC Vil Furest Cinatance (FC) Slage i ‘5 granted o the company h:mmnmmmnnmdnwm
hmmmwmmtalnnm.mnuaﬂmwumwwﬂmmym“umu&mﬂm-i
clwarunce. The comsany nas race ved Catbing! spioval 119 Govarnment of harkrand (State Governsert) far 527 B8 acres of Govarnment 1and 6.1 of wrseh 400 &5 scres of
Lang has bear ranslerrad 1o the Fotes! Department tor CA Furtrer, §11 30 acre of prvate (40T nas alsc Seer Lans’ered 19 the Foress DogertTssnt for CA The Company is in 1™

af W § land Inciug ng certsn ot gowmrnmant wnd 10ent fed Tor I DU soEe 167 Wiign [eGured apgrovals ale Wi pending as 00 T Cale, 40 s 0
mumcmm.mlwmm.thmwmwwmm&m:mmdwwlf«mm-m'mmuumm
Fepasanialions hive heen mace Oy the company as well ay by the Slate G tor 'siderat on of o as subsiantial progesa Nes Seen made ¢ Sentficatan
and procurement of e wand teg o this respect A ¥ T Uhe manin of Fepnuen/ 2025 pursuant to e request made oy the campany for grantwg FC, MOEF has draciea
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